
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 13 June 2022.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

Tuesday, 21 June 2022 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's 

Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 
Cabinet 
Members: 

 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Adam Stokes, The Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities 
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Property 
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor Economy 
Councillor Mark Whittington, Cabinet Member, Waste Services and Climate Change 
Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing 
 

Agenda 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  

SKDC YouTube Channel 

 
1.   Register of attendance and apologies for absence  

  
 

 

2.   Minutes of the previous meeting 
Minutes of the meeting held on 31 May 2022. 

(Pages 3 - 9) 

   
3.   Disclosure of Interests  

  
 

 

4.   Review of the Street Trading Policy (Pages 11 - 54) 
  

 
 

 

Cabinet 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

 

5.   Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy 
 

(Pages 55 - 87) 

 Matters Referred to Cabinet by the Council or Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 
 

 Items for information 
 
 

6.   Cabinet's Forward Plan 
 

(Pages 89 - 96) 

 Items for Cabinet Decision: Key 
 



 

 

Minutes 
Cabinet 
Tuesday, 31 May 2022 

 
 

 
 

 
The Leader: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council (Chairman) 
The Deputy Leader: Councillor Adam Stokes, The Deputy Leader of the Council 
(Vice-Chairman) 
  
Cabinet Members present  
  
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Property 
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
Councillor Mark Whittington, Cabinet Member for Waste and Climate Change 
Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing 
 
Officers 
  

 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer) 
Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer) 
Alan Cotton (Director of Housing and Property) 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Craig Spence (Assistant Director of Housing) 
Graham Watts (Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
Carol Drury (Community Engagement Manager) 
Chris Prime (Interim Communications Manager) 
Patrick Astill (Communications Officer) 
 
1. Register of attendance and apologies for absence 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Annie Mason. 
 
2. Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 April 2022 were confirmed as a 
correct record. 
 
3. Disclosure of Interests 
 
No interests were declared. 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

4. Contract award for building materials supply 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To consider and award the Council’s contract for building materials and supply in 
relation to its responsibilities to repair and maintain its social housing stock. 
 
Decision 
 
That the contract award for the building materials supply contract to Grafton 
Merchanting GB Ltd for a period of up to five years, be approved. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected 
 
The Council had followed a compliant procurement process that resulted in one 
tender submission and there was no certainty that running the process again would 
achieve a different outcome. 
 
Reason for decision 
 
The Council had a clear commitment in its Corporate Plan 2020-2023 to provide 
‘housing that meets the needs of all residents’. As a stock-retained Local Authority, 
the Council had statutory and regulatory obligations to maintain and repair 
approximately 5,900 properties. It was necessary to source materials to undertake 
the day-to-day repairs that were required, as well as undertake repairs to properties 
when they became void, in a timely and cost-effective manner. 
 
The procurement summary was attached to the report as an exempt appendix, not 
for publication, which set out the procurement process undertaken and the reasons 
for recommending the award of the contract to Grafton Merchanting GB Ltd. 
 
5. SK Community Fund: Small Grants Scheme 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To seek approval from Cabinet of the proposed revisions to the eligibility criteria of 
the SK Community Fund: Small Grants Scheme. 
 
Decision 
 
(1) That changes to the eligibility criteria for the SK Community Fund Small 

Grants Scheme be approved, effective within the current funding round (round 
26), which would close on 20 July 2022, subject to the following amendments: 

 
- the minimum grant allowed as part of the scheme reducing from £500 to 

£100 
 

- the removal of reference to an organisation not being able to apply for the 
grant more than three times and this being clarified to state that 
organisations can apply for the grant once every financial year 

4



 

 

(2) That the notification of awards be sent to local Members at the same time as 
the successful applicant in order that they are fully appraised. 

 
Alternative options considered and rejected 
 
The existing criteria of the scheme could have been retained, or further amendments 
proposed. 
 
Reason for decision 
 
The Small Grant Scheme was created following feedback from small and newly-
formed voluntary and community groups who required small yet, to them, significant 
amounts of funding to carry out projects or help with the set up costs of their 
respective groups. Unlike the Community Projects or Community Events grants, 
through which groups could apply for up to 80% of their project costs to a maximum 
of £5,000, the Small Grants Scheme offered up to 100% of project costs to a 
maximum of £2,000. 
 
In recent rounds of funding there had been an increasing number of applications to 
the Small Grants Scheme from groups and organisations that had substantial 
amounts of existing resources, as evidenced through information required as part of 
the application process. The Council’s Rural and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee had therefore recommended that the criteria be amended to 
ensure that groups who held financial resources of £10,000 and above were 
ineligible to apply for the Small Grants Scheme. Such groups would remain eligible to 
apply for the Community Projects and Community Events grant. 
 
In response to the withdrawal of the Ward Member Grant Scheme for 2022/23, it was 
proposed that the lower minimum grant allowed within the Small Grants Scheme be 
reduced, with such an approach envisaged to encourage more applications from 
those who would have previously sought funding through their local Ward Members. 
 
A copy of the revised proposed criteria for the SK Community Fund: Small Grants 
Scheme was appended to the report. 
 
The following points were made by Cabinet Members during consideration of the 
report: 
 

• the minimum grant allowed should be reduced to £100 as opposed to £200 
proposed in the report. It was anticipated that this would generate more 
applications as grants as low as £100 in value were often submitted 
through the previous Ward Member Grant Scheme 

• the criteria was not clear enough regarding the number of times community 
groups or organisations could apply for the grant, with reference in the 
existing criteria to no more than three times together with a limitation of 
only once per financial year 

• local Ward Members used to be more involved in the unveiling of plaques 
or publicity regarding the awarding of grants in their wards. This no longer 
happened and on some occasions it was claimed that Members were not 
even informed as to the award of a community grant in their ward. It was 

5



 

 

noted that notification of awards made through the fund was sent to all 
local Ward Members within two weeks after the closing date of each 
funding round by means of a newsletter 

• the Scheme needed to be as easy and accessible as possible for members 
of the community to use 

 
It was noted that the cost of plaques was previously met from the fund itself and a 
decision had been taken after the first year of the Scheme to stop this process in 
order that the entirety of the fund could be used to benefit community groups.  
 
6. Award of Contract - The Earlesfield Project 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To seek approval to award a contract to the successful tender to undertake 
significant improvement works to a number of properties on the Earlesfield Estate in 
Grantham and recommend to Full Council additional revenue budget allocation. 
 
Decision 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
(1) Approves the award of a contract for the Earlesfield Estate Capital Works 

Project for £3.288 million to United Living Group. 
 
(2) Recommends to Full Council a budget allocation of £1.364 million to be 

funded from the Housing Revenue Account Improvement Reserve in order to 
deliver the one-off revenue costs associated with the Earlesfield Estate Capital 
Works Project. 

 
Alternative options considered and rejected 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected included: 
 

- Not undertaking improvement and asbestos containing material removal works 
- Undertaking works when properties became vacant due to tenancies ending 

 
Reason for decision 
 
The Council had a clear commitment in its Corporate Plan 2020-2023 to provide 
‘housing that meets the needs of all residents’ and the timely delivery of 
improvements to its social housing stock, which included a significant number of 
properties on the Earlesfield Estate in Grantham, was a key element to this. 
 
The Earlesfield Estate contained 1,014 Council-owned properties, of which 152 were 
‘Wimpey No Fines’ design and represented a post-war non-standard construction 
archetype. In 2021, the Council identified that these property types contained 
asbestos containing material and although this did not present immediate risk of 
harm to residents, it was best practice to remove it. It was noted that there were no 
other properties in the Council’s housing stock of this archetype.  

6



 

 

As part of the project initiation process, a range of actions were undertaken as set 
out in paragraph 1.4 of the report by a small group of Officers set up as a project 
team. It was noted that the project team had maintained dynamic risk assessments 
and appropriate mitigations throughout, and the Regulator of Social Housing had 
been kept fully informed through the monthly meetings with senior officers and was 
satisfied with the approach taken. 
 
The asbestos surveys showed that this property type required intrusive works to 
remove the asbestos containing material and that the works would necessitate the 
removal of ceilings within the properties. It was also noted that several of the affected 
properties required replacement kitchens and bathrooms and were also scheduled 
for electrical, heating and door upgrades through the Council’s usual capital works 
programme. 
 
Considering the potential disruption and scope of works needed to the properties 
identified over the next few years, it was considered most practical and efficient to 
package the works into one contract covering all of the works and to temporarily 
transfer approximately 112 households during the work being undertaken to their 
homes. In order to facilitate this, ten properties on the estate had been held as void 
to provide such provision and one flat had been converted into an estate office to 
ensure tenant engagement was optimised. 
 
Details relating to the procurement process was set out in the report, together with 
the financial and budgetary implications which involved a mix of revenue costs and 
capital costs.  
 
The following points were made by Cabinet Members during consideration of the 
report: 
 

• This project should provide existing tenants with an assurance that the Council 
was committed to improving its homes and providing decent accommodation, 
delivering numerous benefits to its residents as a consequence 

• The project represented further evidence of improvements that continued to 
be delivered in the Council’s Housing Department 

• Costs associated with the temporary transfer of households whilst works took 
place would be met by the Council and not fall on the tenants themselves, 
which had been included as part of the overall costs associated with the 
project 

• The Council’s stock condition survey would play an important part in 
developing a programme of maintenance and repair in respect of its housing 
stock, continuing to address legacy issues. Short term, medium term and long-
term programmes would see such improvements be planned as part of a 30-
year overarching programme of works. This would be balanced against the 
new homes programme 

• More energy efficient provision should be included as part of repair and 
maintenance programmes for the Council’s housing stock, particularly when 
the Council from a planning perspective was calling on developers to outline 
what measures they were putting in place when submitting applications  

• Clarity was sought regarding any limitations on a person’s ability to purchase 
their Council-owned home through the Right to Buy Scheme 

7



 

 

• The project represented an increase in standards and helped support the 
improved community feel of the area, which would also benefit wider-
Grantham 
 

With regard to energy efficiency and carbon reduction, the maintenance and repair 
works did not incorporate the introduction of new provision in this respect but would 
not prevent such provision being introduced in the future. It was noted, however, that 
replacement boilers would be more energy efficient than those previously installed. It 
was acknowledged that more could be done to make the Council’s housing stock 
more energy efficient and sustainable, especially in respect of new-build properties, 
however, this would require to a multi-million pound investment which the Authority 
presently could not afford. It was apparent that this could not be achieved without 
financial assistance from central Government and represented a national issue. The 
Leader of the Council agreed to write to the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, 
Housing and Communities seeking confirmation as to the Government’s plans in this 
regard and how the Government intended to move this agenda forward, offering 
South Kesteven as a potential trial district for any relevant initiatives, particularly 
aging Council housing stock. 
 
The Right to Buy Scheme would still provide tenants with the right and opportunity to 
purchase their Council-owned homes, however, given the significant improvements 
made as part of this project a cost floor would mitigate any loss to the Council should 
any of these properties be sold through the scheme. 
 
7. Key and Non-Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers 
 
Those Key and Non-Key Decisions taken under delegated powers since the previous 
meeting of Cabinet, as set out in the report, were noted. 
 
It was agreed that the item in respect of the disposal of land at Stamford would be 
discussed as the last item at this meeting due to its consideration requiring the 
exclusion of the press and public. 
 
8. Cabinet's Forward Plan 
 
Cabinet noted its Forward Plan. 
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 
Under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public may 
be excluded from the meeting during any listed items of business, on the grounds that 
if they were present, exempt information could be disclosed to them as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

 

9. Key and Non-Key Decisions taken under Delegated Powers - Disposal of 
land at Stamford 

 
Discussion ensued in respect of a Non-Key Decision taken by the Cabinet Member 
for Housing and Property on 11 April 2022, with concerns expressed regarding the 
proposed erection of a large fence surrounding the property and the Council’s 
principles generally with regard to the disposal of land and respective covenants.  
 
It was noted that the standard height of fencing for properties was in the region of six 
feet, consistent with the height of the fence proposed for installation. 
 
Concerns expressed regarding covenants were addressed as part of the discussion. 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 10:55. 
 
Decision implementation date, subject to no call-in being received: 16 June 2022 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet  
21 June 2022  

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing  

           

Street Trading Policy  

Following a review of the Council’s Street Trading Policy and a 6-week public consultation, this 
report presents the final draft Policy for consideration.  

 

 

Report Author 

Heather Green, Licensing Team Leader 

 
 01476 406525 

  h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Healthy & Strong 
Communities 

Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Anne-Marie Coulthard, Assistant Director of 
Operations and Public Protection  

1 June 2022 

Approved by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive   1 June 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance and Licensing 

6 June 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the results of the public consultation.  

2. Approves the South Kesteven District Council Street Trading Policy with effect from 
1 September 2022.  

3. Delegates to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Corporate Governance and Licensing, to make minor amendments to the Policy, 
such as legislative updates, which may become necessary from time to time to 
ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or intent. 

11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Under Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, a Local 

Authority may regulate street trading in their area. Street trading is the selling or exposing 

or offering for sale of any article (including a living thing) in any street.   The Council adopted 

these provisions for the whole of the district on 1 September 2006, designating all streets 

within the district as ‘Consent Streets’. 

1.2 The effect of this designation is that any street trading in any street is prohibited, subject to 

legal exemptions, without first obtaining a Street Trading Consent from the Council.  

1.3 The current Street Trading Policy (“the Policy”) outlines how the Council will undertake its 

decision-making functions when dealing with applications for Street Trading Consents and 

was approved by Cabinet on 3 October 2011, effective from 1 January 2012. 

1.4 The Policy has been reviewed and a revised draft Policy which seeks to ensure a more 

robust application process which incorporates changes to legislation has been developed.  

1.5 The proposed revised Policy was considered by the Licensing Committee at their meeting 

of 12 November 2021 and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their meeting 

of 30 November 2021, where it was agreed that the draft was suitable for public consultation. 

1.6 The significant proposed changes are summarised below:  

• Removal of the automatic four-week payment holiday, charges will apply for the full 52 
weeks (pro-rata if not working every day). 

• Enhanced application procedure, requiring the following:   

−  Proof of eligibility to work in the UK  

−  A photograph of the proposed stall  

−  Plan or map of location to be traded from  

−  Permission from landowner to trade if private land 

−  Third party and public liability insurance (£5m) required  

−  Valid MOT certificate (if a vehicle) 

−  Registration as a Food Business and a Food hygiene Rating (no older than 
3yrs) if a food stall  

−  Current gas safety certificate (if applicable) 

−  Basic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) certificate. 

• Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue included as a consultee on relevant applications   

• Mobile traders required to pay a non-refundable annual fee (to avoid seasonal traders 
cancelling for a refund) the fee already recognises seasonality i.e. ice cream traders etc 

Attached is a full outline of the changes proposed (Appendix 1).  

1.3 Although not a legal requirement, a 6-week public consultation has been undertaken, 

closing on 20 April 2022.  

 

 

12



 

 
 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The public consultation included direct contact with the existing street traders in the district 

and other relevant stakeholders such as parish council’s, Lincolnshire Police, Lincolnshire 

County Council Highways etc (as detailed in the consultation report at Appendix 2), 

alongside a press release, social media and the Councils’ website were used to promote 

more generally. 

2.2 Five survey responses were received from a mixture of residents and traders. One response 

was received from the Council’s Environmental Health team, a direct consultee. 

2.3 A consultation report has been produced. The results show support for the proposed 

changes, however, the number of responses was low. The consultation comments have 

been analysed and responses provided (Appendix 2).  

2.4 The consultation response received from Environmental Health has resulted in proposed 

amendments to the draft Policy as follows:   

Comment: The policy refers to traders operating 30m from the centre of the roadway.  More 

clarity to confirm whether this is a minimum, maximum or exact distance would help make 

this clearer  

Proposed change to the draft policy: For clarity insert “within 30m from the centre of the 

roadway” within the definition of “a Street”.  

Comment: The policy states that food businesses need to be registered and have a food 

hygiene rating.  Environmental Health would advise that a minimum food hygiene rating is 

specified to ensure public protection.  A minimum rating of 3 indicates the business is 

‘broadly compliant’ with food safety and hygiene regulations. Failure of the business to 

achieve and maintain a minimum 3 rating or should the food business operator be 

prosecuted for food hygiene/safety offences, the policy could consider licence revocation to 

ensure the public are protected. 

Proposed change to the draft policy: Include requirement for a minimum food hygiene 

rating of “3” (generally satisfactory) in paras 6.6 and 6.8 (new applications) and incorporate 

into Standard Conditions for food stalls. The Policy already allows for revocation of a street 

trading consent upon conviction, para 15.4. 

The revised draft Policy following consultation is at Appendix 3. Changes following 

consultation are shown in blue text.  

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The draft Policy was issued for consultation and the feedback has been reviewed in detail.  

Given the overall support, there are three options:  

1) To proceed with the Council’s existing Street Trading Policy that was approved in 2012 

without amendment.   

2) To proceed with the draft Street Trading Policy as issued for Consultation, with the Policy 

taking effect from 1 September 2022.  

3) To proceed with the draft street Trading Policy updated following consultation to include 

clarification of the definition of a Street and a food hygiene minimum requirement of a 3 

rating for all relevant traders.  To take effect from 1 September 2022. (Appendix 3). 

13



 

 
 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To adopt the draft street Trading Policy updated following consultation to include clarification 

of the definition of a Street and a food hygiene minimum requirement of a 3 rating for all 

relevant traders.  Taking effect from 1 September 2022.  

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The development of the revised Policy has been overseen by the Environment Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee with the involvement of the Licensing Committee.  Public 

consultation has been supportive of the proposed changes with Environment Health 

suggesting amendments that have been reviewed and the draft Policy revised accordingly.  

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 If approved, all existing street trading consent holders will be advised of the changes.  The 

Policy will be published on the Council’s website.  

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with the recommendations in this 

report.  The costs associated with delivering the Licensing service are recovered through 

licensing fees which are reviewed annually by the Council. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of 

Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 Whilst each individual licensing application or enforcement decision will be judged on its 

own merits, a Policy ensures a transparent and consistent approach to licensing that will 

reduce the opportunity for challenge through the Courts.  Any departure from the Policy 

should be based on material evidence and documents giving clear and compelling reasons.  

8.2 There is no legal requirement to undertake a public consultation, however, it is good practice 

for local authorities to consult about any significant proposed changes in licensing rules.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 An equality impact assessment was undertaken 29 October 2021, this has been reviewed 

following the public consultation and no additional impacts have been identified (Appendix 

4). 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No significant risks have been identified.  

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 It is important that those seeking a street trading permit operate safely and do not present 

an undue risk to the public.  The draft Policy seeks to strengthen application checks and 

has broadened potential consultees to ensure that all relevant considerations can be taken 

into account.  

 

14



 

 
 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The changes proposed to the Policy do not impact on the declared climate emergency.  

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None identified  

14 Background Papers 

Existing General Policy and Conditions for Street Trading 2012  

Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee Report - 30 November 2021     

Consultation Results report: 

Consultation Results Document - Street Trading and Street and House to House 

Collections Licensing P.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix 1 – Log of Amendments to the Street Trading Policy. 

Appendix 2 – Responses and proposed amendments following consultation 

Appendix 3 – Draft Street Trading Policy updated following consultation response 

Appendix 4 – Stage 1 Equality Impact Assessment  

 

 

 

 

15

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=14170&p=0
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s31764/Review%20of%20the%20Street%20Trading%20Policy.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34797/Consultation%20Results%20Document%20-%20Street%20Trading%20and%20Street%20and%20House%20to%20House%20Collections%20Licensing%20P.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34797/Consultation%20Results%20Document%20-%20Street%20Trading%20and%20Street%20and%20House%20to%20House%20Collections%20Licensing%20P.pdf
file://///nassau/health/MSOffice/Licensing/Street%20Trading/Policy%20review%20&%20consultation%20docs/4.%20Street%20trading%20policy%20review%202021/Consultation%0d
file://///nassau/health/MSOffice/Licensing/Street%20Trading/Policy%20review%20&%20consultation%20docs/4.%20Street%20trading%20policy%20review%202021/Consultation%0d


This page is intentionally left blank



Log of Amendments to the Street Trading Policy  

       Executive Summary Added in its entirety – with information taken from the 
separate Street Trading Consent Information Pack regarding 
SKDC designating all streets a consent area.  
From old policy:  
Included: Section 2 – Legislation –2.2, 2.3, 2.5 
                  Section 3 – Application Process – 3.1 

1. Introduction  Added in its entirety – for consistency with other Licensing 
Policies that have recently been updated.  
From old policy: 
Included: Section 1 – General Info - 1.1 
                                      Consultation - 1.2 
                  Section 2 – Legislation - 2.2 
                  Section 8 – Exemptions – 8.1 

2. Information Sharing and Data 
Protection  

Added in its entirety  

3. Whistleblowing Added in its entirety  

4. Integrating other Guidance, 
Policies and Strategies   

Added in its entirety 

5. Who should apply ?  Added in its entirety – information taken from the application 
form and updated to include right to work and that both trading 
from a specified location as well as mobile traders must apply.  

6. New Street Trading Consent 
Application process  

Removed:  
3.3 – payments for shorter periods payable by cheque  
3.4 Four-week payment holiday, charging will now be for a full 
52 weeks (pro-rata if not working every day).  
 

 6.2 – Added that the process is online or can be 
downloaded/submitted by post.   

 6.3 – The relevant fee must accompany the application .  

 6.4 – Added that a trading consent is granted to an individual 
applicant and is required to be present at the trading site. 

 6.5 – Added that an assistant can be named on the application 
if the applicant cannot be present.  If an alteration/change of 
name is required, a variation charge will be payable.    

 6.6 – Added in the need to provide:  

• Proof of entitlement to work in the UK 

• A photograph of the stall  

• Plan or map of location to be traded from  

• Permission from landowner to trade if private land 

• Third party & public liability insurance (£5m)  

• Valid MOT certificate (if a vehicle) 

• Food hygiene registration and Food Hygiene Rating (no 
older than 3yrs and minimum rating of 3) if a food stall  

• Current gas safety certificate (if applicable) 

• Basic Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) certificate.  

 6.8 – Newly established food traders advised to contact 
Environmental Health before submitting Street Trading 
application. 

17

Appendix 1



7. Consultation  7.1 – Added in Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue as another 
authority the Council may consult on applications.  

 7.1 – Added in the 10-working day consultation period for all 
other consultees (starting the day after receipt of the 
application).  

 7.3 – Added in that consultees may wish to undertake their own 
risk assessments and impose conditions irrespective of whether 
street trading previously agreed.  

 7.4 – Added that consultation on renewal or mobile trading 
application may be carried out with a selection of consultees 
depending on the merits of the individual circumstances.  

8. Renewal of an application 8.2 – Extended renewal period to 6 weeks in advance of expiry 
(to enable possible consultation). 

 8.3 – Consultation will be undertaken as outlined in Section 7.  

 8.4 – If documents are not provided 6 weeks before expiry and 
a delay in consent being renewed, the consent holder must 
cease trading once the consent expired, until it is renewed. 

 8.5 – Added in that if renewal is not submitted before expiry of 
existing consent it will be treated as a new application and 
could result in the location being allocated to another trader.  

 8.6 – Added in that it is the consent holders responsibility to 
submit their application in good time to enable consultation 
and consideration to be undertaken.  

 8.7 – Added reasons that a consent for grant or renewal will not 
usually be given.  

9. Fees and Charges  9.1 – Added that fees are per the Councils Fees & Charges, 
removing the previously out of date amount.  

 9.2 – Added in the relevant fee must accompany the application  

 9.3 – Included that application fee is equivalent to 3 months 
trading days in advance and billed quarterly thereafter in 
advance or annual fee in advance. 

 9.4 – Added in that mobile traders must pay a non refundable 
annual fee (to avoid seasonal traders cancelling for a refund) 
the fee recognises seasonality ie Ice cream traders etc.  

10. Hours of trading  10.1 – added in that the trading hours will be determined on a 
case-by-case basis dependent upon location and other factors.  

 10.2 – added in what trading hours the Council  seeks to 
promote. 

11. Markets and Fairs  11.1 – Added in what is considered a market or fair.  

 11.3 – Clarified the full definition of market and fairs is in 
Appendix 1. 

12. Stamford Precinct Added in its entirety, previously Stamford Pedestrian Precinct 
was excluded from the Street Trading Policy. The  policy now 
consolidates all Street Trading information.  

13. Decisions 13.2 - Explanation that the licence would be granted or refused.  
If refused an administration fee will not be refunded.  

 13.3 – Explanation of what the consent will include ie Street, 
days of operation and articles permitted to trade 

 13.4 – Outlining that if an application can only be granted if 
substantially modified that it will notify the applicant and give 5 
working days to accept or decline the modified terms. 

18



14. Standard conditions Added in its entirety referencing the Conditions in Appendix 3. 

15. Refusal or withdrawal  15.2 – added the grounds for refusal  

 15.3 – added General Grounds, removedgrounds that aren’t 
referred to in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act. These are moved to Appendix 3 conditions.  Added c), d), 
and e).  

 15.4 – Added reasons the consent may be revoked  

 15.5 – Added actions that can be taken instead of revoking a 
consent. 

 15.6 – Added how fees would be dealt with if if a consent is 
revoked  

 15.7 – Added that no refund due if a consent is revoked for 
mobile traders in relation to fees paid.  

16. Consent Surrender  Added in its entirety.  

17. Enforcement Policy and 
Practice 

Added in its entirety and reflects other policies for consistency. 

18. Appeal Procedure  Added in its entirety. 

19. Policy Review Included from previous policy (1.4) but updated so that if no 
significant amendments required and a 5yr review is not 
deemed necessary or is delayed that the policy remains in 
force.  

20. Advice and Guidance  Updated existing (1.5 in old policy) to reflect current contact 
preferences and website assistance.  

Appendix 1 – Definitions  Added in its entirety  

Appendix 2 – Assessment criteria Added in its entirety, incorporating the previous policy criteria 

Appendix 3 – Standard Conditions Incorporated all the original policy conditions, added 18-20 and 
General Conduct 21-25, Protection of Young People 26-27, 
Noise Nuisance 28-29, Health & Safety 30-32 and that failure to 
comply may result in enforcement action  

Appendix 4 – Stamford Pedestrian 
Precinct 

Added the map of Stamford Pedestrian Precinct 

 

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Responses and proposed amendments following consultation 

The table below sets out comments made, responses and potential amendments to the 

South Kesteven District Council draft updated Street Trading Policy 2022. These proposed 

amendments have been made to ensure that the final policy reflects comments received 

through the wider public consultation. 

Comment  Response and any update proposed 

Q1. Do you support the proposal to strengthen the application process for a street trading 
licence ?  

Too many people think they can just do as 
they like, it needs legislation to protect 
people.  
 
Safety and ensures professional approach.  
 
All these requirements are the bare 
minimum (or equivalent) for anyone that 
was going to open a shop to sell anything.  

The policy is intended to provide clarity to 
applicants, the public and responsible 
authorities on how the Licensing Authority 
will determine applications and obligations 
as outlined in the legislation governing 
street trading.  
Comments only, no change required to  
draft policy  

Do you really need a DBS check to be able 
to sell flowers ? 

One of the grounds for refusal of a street 
trading consent detailed in the Act is that 
the applicant is unsuitable to hold the 
licence by reason of having been convicted 
of an offence.   A basic DBS certificate 
would reveal convictions that could be 
considered relevant when determining the 
application. 
No change to draft policy proposed  

Q3. Do you support the proposal to extend the scope of who is eligible to apply for a street 
trading licence to include mobile traders ?  

Anyone handling food needs to be checked 
on.  
 
 
 
 
The policy refers to traders operating 30m 
from the centre of the roadway.  More 
clarity to confirm whether this is a minimum, 
maximum or exact distance would help 
make this clearer. 
 
 
 
 
The policy states that food businesses need 
to be registered and have a food hygiene 
rating.  Environment Health would advise 
that a minimum food hygiene rating is 
specified to ensure public protection.  A 
minimum rating of 3 indicates the business 
is ‘broadly compliant’ with food safety and 
hygiene regulations. 
 
Should this standard be introduced 
consideration would be needed as to 
appropriate action if the food business 
operator received a rating below 3.  A 
suggestion could be that a business is 

The aim of including mobile traders within 
the street trading policy is to bring about 
consistency with static food trading.  Para 
6.6 of the policy requires all mobile food 
traders to be inspected for food hygiene.  

 
The 30m from the centre of the roadway 
forms part of the definition of Street and 
therefore needs to be read in conjunction 
with the overall definition. For clarity within 
30m from the centre of the roadway could 
be inserted.  
Proposed change to the draft policy: 
insert the word ‘within’ for clarity  
 
The minimum required is to be registered 
as a food business, this would result in food 
hygiene inspection frequency based on risk.  
Setting a minimum food hygiene rating will 
ensure the street traders are broadly 
compliant with food hygiene legislation and 
provide increased assurance to the public.   
The policy already allows for revocation of a 
street trading consent upon conviction – 
para 15.4. 
 
Proposed change to the draft policy: to 
include a minimum requirement of a food 
hygiene rating of 3 for applicable stalls.  

21

Appendix 2



given a suitable time period (for example: 
12 weeks) to improve the rating to a 
minimum of 3 or above.  Failure of the 
business achieving and maintaining a 
minimum 3 rating, or should the food 
business operator be prosecuted for food 
hygiene/safety offences, the policy could 
consider license revocation to ensure the 
public are protected. 
 

Policy wording proposed:  Should an 
applicable trader fail to achieve a minimum 
food hygiene rating of 3 following any 
inspection by Environmental Health, this 
must be rectified within 12 weeks, and a  
new hygiene rating issued. 
If the required rating is not achieved within 
the 12 weeks, the consent holder will be in 
breach of this policy and referred to the 
Licensing Committee.  

Ensures everyone has to pay the same fees Comment only, no change required to 
draft policy  

Q5. Do you support the proposal that existing licence holders should submit their renewal 
application at least 6 weeks before their licence is due to expire ?  

Well if they cant be bothered to do it in time 
!  

Comment only, no change required to  
draft policy  

If it was possible to apply for a consent for a 
year it would help as it is easy to forget to 
apply and could result in losing your 
consent!  

Per para 6.10 in the draft policy a consent 
can be issued for any period up to a 
maximum of 12 months and therefore 
applied for annually.  
 
No change required to the draft policy   

Q7. Do you agree with the proposal that in certain scenarios consents will not normally be 
granted or renewed ?  

Common Sense! Comment only, no change required to 
draft policy   

I thought we had to pay in advance for 
consents so nobody should be in arrears 

Per para 9.3 the requirement is that the first 
3months fees are paid upon application 
followed by quarterly payment in advance. 
Or payment for the required days be paid in 
full upon application/renewal.  
 
Revocation upon arrears is a statutory 
reason and therefore included in the policy.  
No change required to the draft policy   

Accountability Comment only, no change required to 
draft policy 

Q9. Do you agree with the proposal that SKDC should be given 10 working days to 
consult with various other organisations ?  

All the above should be consulted  The range of consultees may vary 
depending upon the location of the 
application and relevant organisations 
responsibilities.  
No change required to the draft policy   

Q11. Do you support the proposal that there will be no entitlement to a refund if a licence 
is surrendered or revoked ?  

It costs money to check and issue why 
should ratepayers have to fund it all the 
applicant will be making money from the 
licence  

Comment only, no change required to 
draft policy 

There could be a valid reason for a trader to 
being able to trade ie physical or mental 
health 

If a consent is surrendered as per para 14, 
there will be no refund for the month in 
which it is surrendered.  Any unused 
months will be refunded.  The fee for mobile 
traders already takes into account the 
potential seasonal nature of trading as per 
para 9. 
No change required to the draft policy   

 

22



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS 

PROVISIONS) ACT 1982  
 

 
 

Street Trading Policy 
 

2022  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• Proposed updates to the policy prior to consultation (red 
text)  

 

• Further proposed updates following consultation (blue text) 
 
 

Version Stage Date 

V1 (draft) Licensing Committee 12 November 2021 

V1 (draft) Environment OSC 30 November 2021 

V1 (draft) Public Consultation 11 March – 22 April 2022 

V2 final draft  Cabinet  21 June 2022 

 

23

Appendix 3



 
 

1 
 
 

Contents 
Executive Summary ................................................................................................ 2 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................... 4 

2.      Information Sharing & Data Protection  ......................................................... 8 

3. Whistleblowing  ............................................................................................. 8 

4. Integrating other Guidance, Policies and Strategies  .................................... 7 

5. Who Should Apply ......................................................................................... 8 

6.. New Street Trading Consent Application Process ......................................... 8 

7.  Consultation  ................................................................................................. 9 

8. Renewal of an Application  ........................................................................ 120 

9. Fees and Charges  ...................................................................................... 12 

10.    Hours of Trading  ......................................................................................... 13 

11.     Markets and Fairs  .................................................................................... 132 

12.     Stamford Pedestrian Precinct  .................................................................. 132 

13. Decisions .................................................................................................. 132 

14. Standard Conditions  ................................... Error! Bookmark not defined.3 

15. Refusal or Withdrawal of Street Trading Consent ..................................... 133 

16.  Consent Surrender .................................................................................... 134 

17 Enforcement Policy and Practice ................................................................ 15 

18. Appeal Procedure ....................................................................................... 15 

19. Policy Review .............................................................................................. 16 

20. Advice and Guidance .................................................................................. 16 

Appendix 1 - Definitions ........................................................................................ 17 

Appendix 2 - Assessment Criteria for new or renewal applications ...................... 20 

Appendix 3 – Standard Conditions ....................................................................... 22 

Appendix 4 – Stamford Pedestrian Precinct Pitch Locations ................................ 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



 
 

2 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Street Trading is controlled in accordance with the provisions contained in Schedule 
4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. South Kesteven 
District Council adopted this schedule on 1 September 2006.   
 
This designated the whole of South Kesteven a consent area, meaning that all streets 
within the South Kesteven District are designated as Consent Streets.  Anyone who 
wishes to trade on a street, highway, other trading area or private land to which the 
public have access without payment must hold a Street Trading Consent.   
 
This policy will be reviewed every five years. In the interim, minor amendments to the 
policy, such as legislative updates, which may become necessary from time to time to 
ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or intent may be made in 
accordance with delegated authority. If no significant amendments are required during 
this period, this policy may remain in force until a review is deemed necessary. 
 
This policy is important in ensuring street trading businesses operate safely and  
supports a number of the priorities in the Councils Corporate Plan;  
 

• Growth of the Economy 

• Healthy & Strong Communities 

• Housing that meets the needs of all residents  

• Clean & Sustainable Environment 

• A High Performing Council  
 

 
By promoting  
 

• Public safety - to protect public health, the health and safety and welfare of 
members of the public and to improve food safety standards. 

• Road safety - to prevent street trading impacting on the safety of public roads 
and reducing risks to pedestrians and vehicles. 

• The prevention of crime and disorder - to prevent street trading being a 
source of crime or anti-social behaviour and ensure traders comply with the law 
and act fairly in their dealings with the public and promote a positive image of 
the district.  

• The prevention of public nuisance - to prevent nuisance, inconvenience, or 
disturbance to members of the public.  
 

Each application will be determined on its own merits. 
 
This policy covers the licensable activity of Street Trading as specified in the Act as:  
 

• The selling or exposing or offering for sale of any article (including a living thing) 
in any street. 
 

Decisions will be taken in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, this may include, 
either the Licensing Committee or Officers using delegated powers. 
 

25



 
 

3 
 
 

Where relevant, the Licensing Authority consults with the responsible authorities as 
described in the Act. Local people and Members of the Council who can have their 
say and their opinion heard through public consultation on this policy and by making 
representations.  
 
Notwithstanding the existence of this policy, each application or enforcement measure 
will be considered on its own merits. Where it is necessary for the Authority to depart 
substantially from its policy - clear and compelling reasons shall be given for doing so.  

26



 
 

4 
 
 

1. Introduction 

 
1.1 South Kesteven District Council is one of seven districts in Lincolnshire with a 

population of around 142,000.  Two thirds of people live in the four main towns 
of Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and the Deepings with the remaining third living 
in one of over 80 villages and hamlets.  With an area of 365 square miles, it is 
one of the largest districts in the county. 

 
1.2  South Kesteven District Council, (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Licensing 

Authority’), is responsible for the licensing of street trading activities under 
Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (the 
Act).  

 
1.3 This policy is intended to provide clarity to applicants, the public and 

responsible authorities on how the Licensing Authority will determine 
applications. Street Collections are regulated under separate legislation and  
subject to a separate policy issued by the Licensing Authority. 

 
1.4 The purpose of street trade consenting is to prevent obstruction of the streets 

of the district within the terms of the Act and to ensure the safety of everyone 
using them.  

 
1.5  Street Trading is defined in the Act as:  
 

• The selling or exposing or offering for sale of any article (including 
a living thing) in any street 

 
 The term “street” defined under the Act has been interpreted widely by the 

Courts.  For this policy, South Kesteven District Council consider a street to be 
defined as the following: 

  

• Any road, footway or other area to which the public have access without 
payment; or 

 

• Any part of a street, road, footway or other areas open as a matter of 
fact to the public without payment; or 

 

• Any area that is within 30 metres from the centre of any (or part of any) 
road, footway or other area to which the public have access without 
payment. 

 
1.6 The following are not classed as street trading under the Act: 
 

• Trading by a person acting as a pedlar under the authority of a pedlar’s 
certificate granted by the Police under the Pedlars Act 1871; 
 

• Anything done in a market or fair, the right to hold which was acquired 
by virtue of a grant (including a presumed grant) or acquired or 
established by virtue of an enactment or order; 

 

27



 
 

5 
 
 

• Trading in a trunk road picnic area provided by the Secretary of State 
under section 112 of the Highways Act 1980; 

 

• Trading as a news vendor – where:  
1. The only articles sold or exposed or offered for sale are 

newspapers or periodicals; and 
2. They are sold or exposed or offered for sale without a stall or 

receptacle for them or with a stall or receptacle for them which 
does not – 
a. Exceed one metre in length or width or two metres in height; 
b. Occupy a ground area exceeding 0.25 square metres; or 
c. Stand on the carriageway of a street; 

 

• Trading which – 
1. Is carried on at premises used as a petrol filling station, or 
2. Is carried on at premises used as a shop or in a street adjoining 

premises so used and as part of the business of the shop; 
3. Selling things, or offering or exposing them for sale, as a 

roundsman;  
 

• The use for trading under Part VIIA of the Highways Act 1980 of an 
object or structure placed on, in or over a highway; 
 

• The operation of facilities for recreation or refreshment under Part VIIA 
of the Highways Act 1980; 

 

• The doing of anything authorised by regulations made under section 5 
of the Police, Factories, etc. (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916.   

 
1.7  In preparing this policy statement the Licensing Authority has consulted with 

those listed below and taken in account the views of all the appropriate bodies 
and organisations who responded:  

 

• The Chief Constable of Lincolnshire Police 

• Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

• Lincolnshire Highways Department  

• Town and Parish Councils  

• All current consent holders  

• General public  

• Departments within South Kesteven District Council  
 
1.8 In accordance with the terms of the Act, and subject to any relevant 

representations, conditions may be attached to a Street Trading Consent, 
which will focus on matters falling within the control of individual consent as well 
as general conditions. 

 
1.9  Each application will be treated on its merits, and these may include, but are 

not limited to: 
 

28



 
 

6 
 
 

• the nature of the proposed street trading activity; 

• direct competition with other local traders providing a similar service; 

• the nature and locality of the street trading; 

• the time of day of the proposed street trading activity; and 

• the type of goods and units used to street trade from. 
 
1.10 In undertaking its licensing function, the Licensing Authority is also bound by 

other legislation including, but not exclusively: 
 

• Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 – which imposes a duty on 
every Local Authority to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its decision-making process.  The duty now extends to anti-social 
behaviour, substance misuse and behaviour adversely affecting the 
environment. 

 

• The European Convention on Human Rights, which is given effect by the 
Human Rights Act 1998, which places a duty on public Authorities to protect 
the rights of individuals in a variety of circumstances. 
 

• The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 to ensure requirements are: 
i. Non- discriminatory. 
ii. Justified by an overriding reason relating to the public interest. 
iii. Proportionate to that public interest objective. 
iv. Clear and unambiguous.  
v. Objective. 
vi. Made public in advance, and 
vii. Transparent and accessible. 

 

• Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 
 

• Police and Justice Act 2006 
 

• Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 
 

• The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 
 

• Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 
 

• South Kesteven District Council is committed to the implementation and 
application of this policy in such a manner as to ensure that no applicant or 
other person is treated less favourably on grounds of sex, marital status, 
race, nationality, ethnicity, national origin, colour, disability or age; nor is 
disadvantaged by the application of a rule, condition or requirement which 
has a discriminatory effect, which cannot be justified either in street trade 
consent terms or as a requirement of law.   

  

29



 
 

7 
 
 

2.      Information Sharing and Data Protection  
  
2.1 The Licensing Authority works in partnership with other enforcement agencies 

such as the  Police, DEFRA, HM Revenue and Customs, Home Office, DVSA, 
Department of Work and Pensions etc. and will share information with other 
Council departments or regulatory bodies where appropriate.  

  
2.2 The Licensing Authority is legally required to provide information if requested, 

pursuant to a criminal offence, or to detect fraud, or immigration offences. 
 

2.3 The Licensing Authority will work with neighbouring authorities and report to them 
any relevant matters that relate to their consent holders. 

 

2.4  Details of Street Trading Consents may be published on the Licensing Authority’s 
website.  This may include name of the business operator, location etc to enable 
the public to be aware of consented traders  

 
2.5 The Licensing Authority complies fully with its obligations under the General Data 

Protection Regulation (GDPR), Data Protection Act 2018 and other relevant 
legislation pertaining to the safe handling, use, storage, retention and disposal 
of information and has a written policy on these matters, which is available to 
those who wish to see it on request. 

 

2.6  The Licensing Authority complies in full with the Data Barring Service (DBS) 
Code of Practice for Disclosure and Barring Service Registered Persons.   

 
2.7 In some circumstances it may be appropriate under the Safeguarding Vulnerable 

Groups Act 2006 for the Authority to make a “barring” referral to the DBS. A 
decision to refuse or revoke a consent as the individual is thought to present a 
risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult, may be referred to the DBS. The power 
for the Licensing Authority to make a referral in this context arises from the 
undertaking of a safeguarding role. 

 
3. Whistleblowing  
 
3.1 The Licensing Authority takes wrongdoing very seriously. Hotlines have been 

established to allow staff, councillors, and the public to raise concerns. Though 
reports can be raised anonymously, individuals are encouraged to leave as much 
information as possible to assist with the investigation. The Licensing Authority’s 
Whistleblowing policy is available at www.southkesteven.gov.uk. 

 
4.      Integrating other Guidance, Policies and Strategies 
 
4.1 The Licensing Authority may implement other polices, strategies and initiatives 

that may impact on street trading activity within the remit of this policy statement.  
Subject to the general principles of this policy statement, the Licensing 
Committee may have to have regard to them when making licensing decisions.    

 

30



 
 

8 
 
 

4.2 By consulting widely prior to this Policy being published and working with our 
partners at all levels, it is hoped this will generate an alignment between this 
policy and any that may be developed by partner agencies. 

 
4.3 In reaching a decision of whether to grant street trading consent, the Licensing 

Authority will take account of any non-compliance with other statutory 
requirements brought to its attention.  Non-compliance with statutory 
requirements may demonstrate that the street trading activity proposed, or that 
the management of such is not appropriate to protect the public from harm or 
nuisance. 

 
5      Who should apply? 
 
5.1 To apply for consent a person must be:  

• An individual or business (the consent will be granted to named individual).  

• 17 years of age or over.  

• Legally entitled to live and work in the UK.  
 
5.2  Applicants wishing to trade from a specified location and mobile traders  

(excluding Roundsman) require a street trading consent.  A definition of both 
Mobile Traders and Roundsman is in Appendix 1 

 
6. Street Trading Consent Application Process 
 
6.1 The functions of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by the 

Licensing Committee or by one or more officers acting under delegated authority.   
 
6.2 An application for a street trading consent should be made using the Council’s 

online application process at www.southkesteven.gov.uk.  Alternatively, an 
application form can be downloaded from the website and submitted by post. 

 
6.3 The relevant fee must accompany the application.  
 
6.4 Street trading consents are granted to an individual applicant. The consent 

document may include a business name, but the applicant is the consent holder 
and is required to be present at the trading site with the vehicle, barrow, cart, 
van, portable stall or other means from which the consent holder trades at all 
times during trading hours. 

 
6.5 The consent holder may however, within the application form, nominate an 

assistant to be present in his or her absence. This assistant will be named on the 
street trading consent document and can only be altered at a later date by an 
application to amend the consent (a variation charge will be payable). 

 
6.6  In addition to a completed application form, the applicant must also submit: 
 

• Proof of right to work in the UK. 

• If appliable, proof of any prospective employee’s right to work in the UK.  

• One Passport photograph.  

31

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


 
 

9 
 
 

• At least one photograph showing the unit/stall (vehicle, barrow, cart, van, 
portable stall or other vehicle) from which the applicant intends to trade.  

• A plan or map of the area from which the applicant intends to trade or the 
route to be taken.  This should clearly identify the position of the proposed 
trading site. 

• If the proposed trading site is located on private land, written permission  
must be obtained from the landowner/occupier. This must accompany the 
application.  

• Evidence of insurance that covers the street trading activity and the consent 
holder for third party and public liability risks that provides insurance of at 
least £5,000,000 (five million) and to indemnify the Council against all 
claims, liabilities, actions, demands and expenses arising from the grant or 
renewal of the street trading consent. 

• If a vehicle is to be used, a valid MOT certificate for that vehicle or supply 
the vehicle registration number to enable the licensing authority to check 
the MOT status of the vehicle with the DVLA online service.   

• If the business involves the preparation and sale of food, the vehicle must 
have been inspected and received a food hygiene rating of at least 3 
(generally satisfactory).  Evidence of this must be provided.   

• A current gas safety certificate for the vehicle or stall if applicable 

• A basic Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate (DBS) for the applicant 
and each employee or person/s standing in for them. This can be obtained 
from https://www.gov.uk/request-copy-criminal-record.  This must be 
received by the Licensing Authority no later than 28 days from the date of 
issue. 

  
6.7 Applicants may be liable to pay business rates and should seek advice from the 

Council’s Business Rates team They can be contacted via the Council’s website 
southkesteven.gov.uk or telephone 01476 406080.  

 
6.8 Newly established food traders are advised to contact the Environmental Health 

team at the earliest opportunity and before submitting an application for a Street 
Trading Consent.  A minimum food hygiene rating of 3 (generally satisfactory) 
must be achieved prior to a Street Trading Consent being issued. This must be 
maintained throughout the period of the consent (see standard conditions, 
Appendix 3). 

 
6.9 If the area the applicant  wishes to trade in is already occupied, they may be 

included on the waiting list, a request for this must be made in writing by emailing  
Licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk.  Applicants will remain on the waiting list for 
6 months.  Should they wish to remain on the waiting list after this time they must 
notify the Licensing Authority in writing.  

 
6.10 Consent can be issued for any period up to a maximum of 12 months.  After this 

period the consent will expire. If a consent is not renewed, the designated site 
will become available for other applicants.   

 
7. Consultation  
 
7.1  When an application is received the Council may consult with:   

32

https://www.gov.uk/request-copy-criminal-record
mailto:Licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk


 
 

10 
 
 

• Lincolnshire County Council Highways or Highways England (depending 
on the area of trading). 

• Lincolnshire Police.  

• Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue Service. 

• Relevant businesses in the location.  

• Town & Parish Councils. 
 
 Departments within South Kesteven District Council  

• Environmental Health Department. 

• Planning Department. 
 
 The consultation period is 10 working days (starting the day after receipt of the 

application).  
 
7.2  Following receipt of an application, an officer of the Council may visit the 

applicant to inspect the vehicle, barrow, cart, van, portable stall or other vehicle 
or other means from which the applicant intends to trade or the proposed site. 

 
7.3 Previous grant of a consent at a location does not imply that permission will be 

granted.  The consultees may wish to carry out their own risk assessments and 
impose conditions or object to the use of a particular site, irrespective of whether 
a Street Trading Consent has previously been given.  

 
7.4 Consultation(s) on renewal or mobile trading applications may be carried out with 

a selection of the above consultees depending on the merits of the individual 
circumstances. Where issues or concerns have been raised about an existing 
Street Trading Consent, a full consultation may be undertaken at renewal. 

 
8. Renewal of an application  
 
8.1 Street Trading Consents can be issued for a maximum period of 12 months. 

There is no automatic right to renewal.  
 
8.2 An application to renew a trading consent must be received by the Licensing 

Authority at least 6 weeks before the expiry of the existing consent and be 
accompanied by the appropriate fee and relevant documentation. 

 
8.3 Consultation will be undertaken as outlined in Section 7 - Consultation.   
 
8.4 If a renewal application, payment and all required documentation are not 

provided at least 6 weeks before expiry, leading to a delay in the consent being 
renewed, the consent holder must cease trading once the consent expires and 
not begin again until such a time as the consent is renewed.  

 
8.5 If a renewal application is not submitted before expiry of the existing consent, it 

will be treated as a new application and could result in the location being 
allocated to another trader.  

 

33



 
 

11 
 
 

8.6 It is the responsibility of the consent holder to submit their application in 
good time to enable the necessary consideration and consultation to be 
undertaken.  

 
8.7 Consents will not normally be granted or renewed where: 
 

• Enforcement action is pending or has previously been undertaken and 
proved against the applicant. 

• The holder is currently in arrears with any charges. 

• The location or proposed unit is unsuitable. 

• There is a potential risk to public safety. 

• The applicant is unsuitable. 

• An applicant has failed to appropriately use previous consents. 

• The activities are likely to cause a nuisance, disturbance or annoyance to 
neighbouring properties. 

• It may contribute to crime and disorder. 
 
 This list is not exhaustive. 
 
8.7 When assessing a new application or renewal of a Street Trading Consent the 

assessment criteria outlined in Appendix 2 will be used.  
 
9. Fees and Charges  

 
9.1 The relevant fees are contained in the approved South Kesteven District Council 

Fees and Charges which are reviewed annually. 
 
9.2 An application fee (see 9.3 below) must be submitted with all applications.   
 
9.3 The fee is based upon the number of trading days per month, specified by the 

applicant.  The fee equivalent to the first three months must be paid prior to the 
consent being issued.  The following payment options are available:  

• Three months payment on application, followed by quarterly payment in 
advance. 

or 

• The full annual fee for the required days.  
  
9.4 Mobile traders are required to pay an annual fee prior to the permit being issued, 

regardless of how many months are traded.  There is no entitlement to a refund 
if a consent is surrendered as the fee set recognises the potentially seasonal 
nature of this type of trading.  

 
10.  Hours of Trading  

 
10.1 Hours of trading will be determined as appropriate on a case-by-case basis 

dependent upon the location and other relevant factors.   
 
10.2 The trading hours will seek to promote the following:  

I. Preventing crime, disorder and antisocial behaviour.  

34



 
 

12 
 
 

II. Avoiding disturbance due to noise, smell or any other matter the council 
considers appropriate.  

III. Protecting public safety.  

IV. Preventing obstruction of the highway.  

V. Having regard to location and operating hours of business activity in the 
locality.  

 
11. Markets and Fairs  
 
11.1 Where a market or fair is held it must be lawfully created by statute, grant or 

presumed grant and is exempt from the Street Trading provisions.  If such 
statute, grant or presumed grant does not exist any gathering of buyers and 
sellers amounts to an informal market regardless of whether the activity is 
described as a “market”. A definition of Informal or Unofficial Markets is in 
Appendix 1. 

 
11.2 The markets and fairs within the district that are granted by Charter, are exempt 

from requiring a Street Trading Consent.  
 
11.3 Street Trading will not be permitted at locations which conflict with market days 

or during fairs in the district.  Full details of the markets and fairs within the district 
are outlined in Appendix 1.  

 
12.  Stamford Pedestrian Precinct  
 
12.1  The High Street in Stamford is a pedestrianised area, known as Stamford 

Pedestrian Precinct and is maintained by Lincolnshire County Council. This area 
is not included in a Charter and a Street Trading Consent is required for this area 
between Sunday and Thursdays.    

 
12.2  Five pitches have been designated for Street Trading between Ironmonger Street 

and Maiden Lane.  Another pitch is available outside the library.  Please see 
Appendix 4 for the positions of the pitches.   

 
12.3 Pitch Four is designated for Charity Collections only.  Please see the separate 

Street Collection Policy for details.  
 
12.4 On Fridays a market (as defined by 11.1 above) is in operation.  
 
12.5 On Saturdays Pitches 1, 3 and 5 are currently operated under Street Trading 

Consent rules.  The rest of the allocated pitches are allocated to a market (as 
defined by 11.1 above).  This allocation may change over time.  

 
13. Decisions  
 
13.1 Decisions will be made in accordance with the delegations as detailed in the 

Council’s Constitution.  Each case will be determined on its own merits.  This 
document provides the general principles relating to the determination of 
applications which shall generally be followed. 

 

35



 
 

13 
 
 

13.2 The application will either be: 
 

a. Granted and a Street Trading Consent issued subject to conditions that will be     
attached;  

b. Refused.     
 
13.3 When a consent is granted it will state: 

• The street in which (and place in the street as appropriate), days on which 
and times between which the consent holder is permitted to trade, and  

• The description of articles in which they are permitted to trade.  
 
13.4 In instances where the Licensing Authority considers that it can grant a 

substantially modified version of the application (i.e. for less hours than those 
applied for), it will notify the applicant of its decision and give the applicant 5 
working days from the day after the decisions is dated to accept the grant of the 
consent on those modified terms. If the applicant does not respond the 
application will be determined as originally submitted.  

 
13.5 Applicants selling hot food or drink between 23:00 hrs and 05:00 hrs will also 

require a Premises License under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
14. Standard conditions  
 
14.1 The Licensing Authority applies Standard Conditions to all Street Trading 

Consents as detailed in Appendix 3.  
 
14.2 Additional Conditions not listed in Appendix 3 may be specifically tailored by the 

Licensing Authority and attached to consents as appropriate.  
 
15.  Refusal or withdrawal of Street Trading Consent   
 
15.1 Where the imposition of conditions is not adequate to control potential issues or 

concerns, applications will be refused. 
 
15.2  The grounds for refusal of a Street Trading Consent falls into distinct categories;    
 

I. Mandatory Grounds: Where South Kesteven District Council has no 
power or discretion to grant a Consent.  The application must be refused.  

II. Control Orders: Where a Control Order is in place under Section 7 of the 
Local Government Act (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 is in force.  

III. General Grounds: Where South Kesteven District Council is satisfied 
that the application “ought to be refused”  

 
15.3 Mandatory Grounds  
 

a) Where there is not enough space in the street for the applicant to engage 
in the trading in which is proposed without causing undue interference or 
inconvenience to people using the street; 

 

36



 
 

14 
 
 

b) There are already enough traders (including shops) in the street, trading 
in the sale of goods or services the applicant proposes to trade. 

 
c) The applicant is unsuitable to hold the Consent by reason of having been 

convicted of an offence or for any other reason. 
 

d) The applicant has persistently refused or neglected to pay fees due to the 
Licensing Authority for a previous Street Trading Consent (or other 
charges due to the Local Authority in connection with it).  

 
e) The applicant has without reasonable excuse failed to utilise a previous 

Street Trading Consent to a reasonable extent. 
 

  
15.4 The Licensing Authority may revoke a Street Trading Consent if it considers;  
 

a) Circumstances have arisen since the grant or renewal of the Consent and 
there is not enough space in the street for the consent holder to engage 
in the trading permitted by the Consent without causing undue 
interference or inconvenience to persons using the street. 

 
b) The consent holder is unsuitable to hold the Consent by reason of having 

been convicted of an offence or for any other reason. 
 

c) Since the grant or renewal of the Consent, the consent holder has 
persistently refused or neglected to pay fees due to the Licensing 
Authority for the Consent or services associated with the Consent  

 
d) Since the grant or renewal of the Consent, the consent holder has, without 

reasonable excuse, failed to avail themself of the Consent to a reasonable 
extent. 

 
15.5 If the Licensing Authority considers that it has grounds for revoking a Consent, it 

may, instead of revoking it, vary its conditions: 
  

a) By reducing the number of days or the period in any one day during which 
the consent holder is permitted to trade, and/or 

 
b) By restricting the descriptions of goods in which they are permitted to 

trade. 
  
15.6 If the Consent is revoked, consent-holders will not be entitled to a refund for any 

unused days remaining in the month that the revocation takes effect. 
 
15.7 If a Mobile Trading Consent is revoked consent holders will not be entitled to a 

refund for any unused remaining days within the existing Consent.      
 
 

 

 

37



 
 

15 
 
 

16.  Consent surrender  
 
16.1 A Consent holder may at any time surrender their Street Trading Consent.  The 

surrender will not be effective until the Street Trading Consent has been returned 
to the Licensing Authority.  It shall then cease to be valid.  

 
16.2 If a Consent is surrendered (or it is revoked) there will be no entitlement to a 

refund for the month that the surrender (or revocation) takes place. No refund is 
applicable for mobile traders, as the fee charged recognises the often seasonal 
nature of this trading.  

 
 
17 Enforcement Policy and Practice  
 
17.1 It is the statutory duty of the Licensing Authority to ensure that Street Traders are 

licensed correctly and carry out their trade in accordance with both the relevant 
law, byelaws, statutory notices, policies and conditions attached to consents. 

 
17.2 Enforcement action will be determined on its own merits. 
 
17.3 Enforcement decisions will be made in accordance with this policy and the 

Licensing Authority’s Constitution. Officers have delegated powers to make 
decisions and may also refer certain matters to the Licensing Committee if 
appropriate. 

 
17.4 Members, when determining enforcement actions will have regard to Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 legislation, this Policy and any 
other relevant legislation, case law, guidance and other relevant South Kesteven 
District Council policies. 

 
17.5 All enforcement will be undertaken in accordance with the Licensing Authority’s 

current enforcement policy. 
 
 

18. Appeal Procedure  
 
18.1 If the application or a renewal is refused an appeal may be lodged at any time 

before expiration of the 21 days starting from the day when the applicant is 
advised in writing of the reason for the refusal. 

 
18.2 An appeal right only relates to the General Grounds outlined in 15.3 (d) – (e).  
 
18.3  There are no appeal rights relating to the General Grounds outlined in 15.3 (a) 

– (c). The only means to challenge a decision on this basis is by Judicial Review. 
 
18.4 An appeal is submitted to the Magistrates Court in which the street for which the 

consent was sought is situated.  
 
 

38



 
 

16 
 
 

19. Policy Review 
 
19.1 This policy will be reviewed every five years.  In the interim, minor amendments 

to the policy, such as legislative updates, which may become necessary from 
time to time to ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or 
intent may be made in accordance with delegated authority.  If no significant 
amendments are required during this period, this policy may remain in force until 
a review is deemed necessary.  

 
20. Advice and Guidance 
 
20.1 Further information and advice on the Street Trading Consent process can be 

obtained by contacting South Kesteven District Council Licensing team by 
telephoning (01476) 406080, by e-mail at licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk or by 
visiting the Business and Licensing area of the Council’s website 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk  

39

mailto:licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


 
 

17 
 
 

Appendix 1 - Definitions  
 
Informal or Unofficial Markets: Any gathering of buyers and sellers amounts to an 
informal market regardless of whether the activity is described as a “market” if not 
created by statute, grant or informal grant.  This can include certain types of auction, 
car boot sale or if organisers purport to organise a “club” whereby members are able 
to buy. Trading at such a market is still ‘street trading’ and a consent must be sought.  
An unofficial market held on private property and not on the highway will require the 
trader to seek licenses because “street” is defined to include any place to which the 
public have access without payment.  
 
 
Market or fair by virtue of a grant or enactment or order:  Within the district of 
South Kesteven these are:  
 

1. Chartered Markets 
 

 Stamford - Weekly Friday (Broad Street and High Street) 

                           
 Grantham - Weekly Saturday (Wide and Narrow Westgate, Market Place,  

          Conduit Lane, Butchers Row). 
 
 Bourne - Weekly Thursday & Saturday (Corn Exchange Car Park). 
 

2. Chartered Fairs  
 

 Starting on Mothering Sunday (in Stamford) and Grantham from the following 
 Saturday, as follows for each town: 
 
 Stamford – Red Lion Square, Crown Street, Broad Street, Bath Row, Castle 

          Dyke, Sheep Market, Star Lane, Castle Street.  
 (Road closures normally from the Saturday before mothering Sunday until the 
 following Sunday morning – 9 days road closure duration). 
 

 Grantham – Wide and Narrow Westgate, Market Place, Conduit Lane, Welby 
           Street, Union Street and part of Guildhall Street. 

 (This fair runs from Saturday to Thursday AM – 6 days road closure duration). 
 
Markets held in Stamford Pedestrian Precinct: on Fridays (Farmer’s market) and 
Saturdays 
 
Mobile Trader:  is defined by the Licensing Authority as someone who moves from 
location to location to ply their trade. They must:  

• Not return to the area within 2 hours. 

• Not wait in one location for more than 30 minutes (if they stay for longer in 
one location, they will not be deemed to be mobile traders and will require 
a Street Trading Consent for each location they visit). 

• Not trade within 100 metres of the entrance to a place of education without 
being invited by them to do so.  

40



 
 

18 
 
 

• Ice cream vans, mobile sandwich and hot food sellers (that do not have 
specific customers to whom they visit on a “round”) are types of mobile 
trader. 

 
Mobile traders that have a contract in place with customers do not need a mobile 
trading consent. This may include hot food and sandwich vans. This type of trader is  
called roundsmen.  
 
Pedlars: Section 3 of the Pedlar’s Act 1871 defines a pedlar as “any hawker, pedlar, 
petty chapman, tinker, caster of metals, mender of chairs or other persons who without 
any horse or beast travels and trades on foot and goes from town to town or others 
men’s houses, carrying or selling or exposing for sale any goods, wares, merchandise 
immediately to be delivered, or selling or offering his skill in handicraft” and must be 
certified as a pedlar per Section 4 of the Act.  
 
Removal of obstruction: If the highway is maintained by South Kesteven District 
Council it and the Highways Authority has a common law power to remove 
obstructions from the highway.  There is no duty to issue or to take proceedings prior 
to removing the obstruction.  If the highway is not maintained by the South Kesteven 
District Council, the competent authority to undertake removal is the Highways 
Authority (Lincolnshire County Council).  
 
Roundsman:  Milk delivery round, coal delivery rounds and other people who offer or 
expose goods for sale may lawfully trade without a street trading consent. Evidence 
of pre-ordering would be expected to differentiate from casual or speculative sales.  
Ice-cream vans, mobile fish and chip vans/Pizza Ovens (hot food sales) are not 
considered  roundsman.  
 
Street: defined under the Act has been interpreted widely by the Courts.  For this 
policy, South Kesteven District Council consider a street to be defined as the following: 
  

o Any road, footway or other area to which the public have access without 
payment; or 

 
o Any part of a street, road, footway or other areas open as a matter of fact to the 

public without payment; or 
 

o Any area that is within 30 metres from the centre of any (or part of any) road, 
footway or other area to which the public have access without payment 
 

Street Collections: Collection of money or selling articles for the benefit of charitable 
or others purposes in any street or public place as regulated by Section 5 of the Police, 
Factories etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916, as amended by Section 251 and 
Schedule 29 to the Local Government Act 1972.  
 
Street Trading: The selling or exposing or offering for sale of any article (including a 
living thing) in any street. 
 
The following are not classed as street trading under the Act: 
 

41



 
 

19 
 
 

o Trading by a person acting as a pedlar under the authority of a pedlar’s 
certificate granted under the Pedlars Act 1871; 

 
o Anything done in a market or fair the right to hold which was acquired by virtue 

of a grant (including a presumed grant) or acquired or established by virtue of 
an enactment or order; 
 

o Trading in a trunk road picnic area provided by the Secretary of State under 
section 112 of the Highways Act 1980; 

o Trading as a news vendor – where:  
3. The only articles sold or exposed or offered for sale are 

newspapers or periodicals; and 
4. They are sold or exposed or offered for sale without a stall or 

receptacle for them or with a stall or receptacle for them which 
does not – 
a. Exceed one metre in length or width or two metres in height; 
b. Occupy a ground area exceeding 0.25 square metres; or 
c. Stand on the carriageway of a street; 

 

• Trading which – 
1. Is carried on at premises used as a petrol filling station, or 
2. Is carried on at premises used as a shop or in a street adjoining 

premises so used and as part of the business of the shop; 
3. Selling things, or offering or exposing them for sale, as a 

roundsman;  
 

• The use for trading under Part VIIA of the Highways Act 1980 of an 
object or structure placed on, in or over a highway; 
 

• The operation of facilities for recreation or refreshment under Part VIIA 
of the Highways Act 1980; 

 

• The doing of anything authorised by regulations made under section 5 
of the Police, Factories, etc. (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916.   

 
 
 
 
  

42



 
 

20 
 
 

Appendix 2 - Assessment Criteria for new or renewal applications  
 
When assessing a new application or renewal of a Street Trading Consent the 
following considerations and the terms of this policy will be used:  
 
 

1. Public safety 

• The proposed location of the activity should not present a risk to the public 
in terms of highway safety and obstruction. 

• Applications in respect of sites that have previously been the subject of 
refusal due to the unsuitability of the location are unlikely to be accepted. 
 

2. Prevention of crime and disorder 

• The proposed activity should not present a risk of crime and disorder. 
 

3. Prevention of nuisance 

• Activities at the pitch must not cause a nuisance, annoyance or disturbance 
to neighbouring properties, this includes businesses.  

• Controls must be in place to ensure that nuisance from noise, light, refuse, 
vermin, fumes, obstruction, littering, and smells does not occur. 

• If complaints that nuisance, annoyance or disturbance is occurring, the 
Licensing Authority is duty bound to investigate and, if complaints are found 
to be justified, may decide to take enforcement action, including revocation 
of the consent. 

 
4. Suitability of the applicant 

• Unspent convictions the applicant may have, this information will be 
requested in the online application. 

• When determining whether an applicant is suitable, the Licensing Authority 
will consider the reliability of the applicant in paying fees and charges based 
on previous history. 

• An applicant’s history of street trading will also be taken into consideration 
e.g. whether previous street trading consents have been used appropriately 
and whether the Licensing Authorities requirements have been met, 
including deadlines. 

• Enforcement action is pending or has previously been undertaken and 
proved against the applicant. 

 
5. Suitability of the trading unit 

• The vehicle, trailer or unit to be used should be of a high-quality design and 
comply with the legal requirements for the activity proposed. 

• The appearance of the unit must be maintained at the standard approved in 
the original consent. 

• Location of trading may determine the trading unit or type of goods sold, 
e.g.in conservation areas the use of traditional style barrows/vehicles and 
traditional wares, crafts, foods etc.  

• Diesel generators will be permissible outside when no other power source 
is available. They shall be positioned to reduce the length of cabling required 

43



 
 

21 
 
 

to an absolute minimum and to minimise disturbance to local residents or 
businesses from noise or fumes.  
 

6. Advertising 

• Advertising must only relate to goods offered for sale on that pitch. 

• Third party advertisements are prohibited. 

• It is not permitted to illuminate any advertisement on the outside of the stall 
kiosk without express consent of the Licensing Authority. 

• The use of ‘A’ boards or any other display board/structures are prohibited 
unless included within the street trading consent approval.  
 

7. Barriers 

• Barriers for safety purposes will only be allowed on a consent pitch where 
they have been specifically included within the street trading consent 
approval. 

• Any barriers proposed shall not constitute a nuisance or danger under the 
Highways Act 1980, must not impede the free flow of pedestrians or traffic 
and must not restrict the pavement so as to inhibit social distancing (if it is 
required). 

 
8. Selling the right goods 

• The types of goods allowed to be sold will be considered on a pitch-by-pitch 
basis and specified on the consent. The quality of goods and innovative 
approach will be considered. 

• Anyone applying for a stall must clearly state the nature of the proposed 
goods. The goods must not: 
o Cause a nuisance, disturbance or annoyance to nearby properties/ 

people, including cooking smells, smoke, noise, litter and additional 
cleansing requirements for the Council. 

o Cause or contribute to crime and disorder – including the selling of fake 
or counterfeit goods. 

o Have a negative public health impact e.g. vaping products, locality of fast 
food units near schools, gyms etc. 

 
9. Site assessment 

• In determining whether street trading in a particular area is appropriate the 
Licensing Authority  will have regard to: 
o Any effect on road safety either arising from the siting of the pitch or from 

customers visiting or leaving. 
o Any loss of amenity caused by noise, traffic, smell etc. 
o Existing traffic orders e.g. waiting restrictions. 
o Any potential obstruction of pedestrian, vehicular or disabled access. 
o Any nuisance/interruption to pedestrian flow or maintenance of 

appropriate social distancing. 
o Obstruction of entry to or sight lines to the entrance of retail premises or 

obstruction of display windows of retail premises. 
  

44



 
 

22 
 
 

Appendix 3 – Standard Conditions  
 
The following conditions are attached to all street trading consents: 
 

1. This Street Trading Consent does not convey any other approvals that may be 
necessary under the Food Hygiene regulations, Planning legislation or other 
appropriate legislation. 
 

2. Trading is permitted only from the stall or vehicle, details of which has been 
previously supplied to the Licensing Authority and shall be confined thereto. 
 

3. Trading is permitted only from the position, or the area specified in the consent. 
 

4. Trading is only permitted in the type of goods specified in the consent. 
 

5. The consent holder shall comply with all appropriate statutory provisions e.g. 
food hygiene, advertisement control and health and safety regulations. 
 

6. Should an applicable trader fail to maintain a minimum food hygiene rating of 3 
(Generally Satisfactory) following an inspection by Environmental Health, this 
must be rectified within 12 weeks and a new hygiene inspection undertaken 
and rating issued to confirm it has been achieved. 
 

7. No signs or advertisements shall be displayed other than on the stall or vehicle, 
and in such cases signs that relate to goods specified in the consent (Condition 
4).  Signs must not be placed on the roadside to avoid distracting drivers.  
 

8. The holder of a Street Trading Consent shall take all reasonable precautions to 
prevent obstruction of the street or danger to persons using the street and to 
prevent nuisance or annoyance, to persons using the street, immediate 
neighbours or otherwise.  
 

9. The Street Trading Consent shall be limited to times and days specified for 
trading purposes and all vehicles, trailers and equipment, etc. shall be removed 
at the end of each trading day, unless otherwise agreed. 
 

10. The Street Trading Consent holder shall always maintain a valid third-party 
public liability insurance policy to the value of £5,000,000 and shall produce a 
valid certificate of insurance at any time. 
 

11. Covered waste bins, to the satisfaction of the Licensing Authority, shall be 
provided for staff and/or customers.  Emptying of the said bins shall be emptied 
at regular intervals and at the end of each trading day.  
 
 

12. Wastewater and food is to be collected and removed from the point of trade 
daily.  
 

13. The holder of a Street Trading Consent shall be required to seek the approval 
of the Licensing Authority to any proposed change to the mode of trading 
permitted under the Consent. 
 

14. The Street Trading Consent shall be displayed on the vehicle used in 
connection with the trading. 

45



 
 

23 
 
 

 

15. The Consent holder shall not at any time cause or permit any goods or produce 
to be stored or displayed at the side of the unit, or place any table, chair, trestle, 
box or other structure in the consent street without permission from Lincolnshire 
County Council, as a pavement café licence may be required. 
 

16. Any major damage caused to the site that can be directly attributed to the 
presence of a street trader may be taken into account during the consideration 
of renewal of the Consent. 
 

17. In exceptional circumstances the unit may have to be moved by the operator 
without prior warning for emergency reasons. 
 

18. This Street Trading Consent does not convey any right to trade on privately 
owned property unless express written agreement has been provided to the 
Licensing Authority.  
 

19. Consents are personal to the applicant and are not transferable. Once the 
Consent has been issued to an individual it will only be renewed to that 
individual. This is to prevent the pitch being sold on for a monetary gain. 
 

20. Consent holders are not permitted to sub-let the pitch they are allocated under 
any circumstances. 
 

21. Nothing in these conditions shall excuse the Consent holder from any legal duty 
or liability and the consent holder shall indemnify the Council in respect of all 
claims, actions or demands arising from the consent except where due to the 
Council's own negligence.  
 
General Conduct 
 

22. Should the trader wish to surrender their Consent, they must do so formally in 
writing by emailing licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk and returning their 
Consent. Failure to do so will result in Consent fees remaining payable.  
 

23. The  Consent holder and any employees named on the Consent must notify 
the Licensing Authority in writing within five working days of any change of 
address, any charges, police investigations and/or convictions or cautions 
which arise during the terms of the Consent. The Licensing Authority reserves 
the right to suspend a Consent with immediate effect pending a review of the 
Consent by the Head of Public Protection or another senior authorised officer 
should any criminal matter serious enough that there are concerns for public 
safety. 
 

24. The Consent holder shall be clean in his person and shall not exhibit insobriety, 
incivility, improper language or other misconduct. 
 

25. Serious misconduct will result in an immediate suspension of the Consent to 
enable a review to take place by the Head of Public Protection or other senior 
authorised officer potentially leading to revocation. 
 

46

mailto:licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk


 
 

24 
 
 

26. Where mobile trading is taking place and upon entering a street another mobile 
trader of the same type i.e. ice cream traders is already trading, then the mobile 
trader entering the street must leave without trading in it. 
 
Protection of Young People 
 

27. Street trading will not normally be authorised within 50 metres of any entrance 
or exit to a school or nursery. (The distance from the entrance to a school or 
nursery may be extended where issues of public safety are raised during the 
consultation of the application). 

 
28. No child aged 16 or below shall be engaged in or employed to undertake any 

street trading under a Consent issued by the Licensing Authority  
 
Noise Nuisance 
 

29. The Consent holder shall not use any device for the reproduction or 
amplification of sound; or any device or instrument to attract vendors to the 
stall/vehicle/trailer by sound. 
 

30. Ice cream vans may use a chime only in accordance with the Code of Practice 
on Noise from Ice Cream Van Chimes etc. 1982. 
 
Health & Safety 
 

31. The use and storage of LPG will comply with the requirements of the Health 
and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and any Fire Authority requirements. 
 

32. Where any LPG or electricity is used then suitable fire extinguishers must be 
provided and maintained in a satisfactory condition. 
 

33. The Consent holder shall not keep or store explosive materials and flammable 
liquids on their trading units, other than gas cylinders in compliance with current 
legislation. 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE: 
 
Failure to comply with conditions may result in enforcement action, revocation of the 
Consent, and refusal to grant further Consents on application. 
 
The Licensing Authority reserve the right to amend these standard conditions at any 
time and may attach any further reasonable conditions to a Consent which appears 
appropriate to meet particular circumstances. 
 
Do not assume that these rules apply to other districts – some local authorities 
do not allow any street trading, and in any event, local conditions may vary. 
 
  

47



 
 

25 
 
 

Appendix 4 – Stamford Precinct Street Trading Pitches  
 
 

 
Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database rights 2022.  South Kesteven District Council Licence No. LA 100018662 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document enhancement for the visually impaired available on request – tel. (01476) 
406080 or e-mail  customerservices@southkeseteven.gov.uk 

 

Maiden 
Lane 

48

mailto:customerservices@southkeseteven.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

Street Trading Policy 
Licensing  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
Licensing 
 

Lead officer: 
Heather Green  

Date of Meeting  
 
29/10/21 Assessors: 

Anne-Marie Coulthard  

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 

  

49

Appendix 4



 

 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

South Kesteven District Council Street Trading Policy.  

 

The current policy was last updated in 2012. A review has been 
undertaken to ensure it is fit for purpose and accommodates any new 
guidance.  The updated draft policy has been through Committee Stages 
and will be adopted upon approval by Cabinet. The policy sets out the 
requirements and standards that must be met by applicants seeking a 
Street Trading Consent and will guide the work of the Authority in the way 
in which it carries out its function.  

 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  Existing  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative. 
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

Positive The policy sets out to protect 
the general public as a whole 
and those under the age of 
16years, ensuring that they are 
not used to undertake street 
trading activity.    

Disability 
 

 

Positive  The policy sets out 
requirements for the street 
trading stalls, advertising and 
the area surrounding a stall 
that will protect the public and 
people with disabilities.   

Race 
 

Neutral  This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street trading.  The 
policy, whilst not being 

50



 

 

 

determined by this individual 
protected characteristic has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Neutral  This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street trading.  The 
policy, whilst not being 
determined by this individual 
protected characteristic has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Religion or 
Belief   

Neutral  This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street trading.  The 
policy, whilst not being 
determined by this individual 
protected characteristic has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Sex 
 
 
   

Neutral This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street trading.  The 
policy, whilst not being 
determined by this individual 
protected characteristic has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

Neutral This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street trading.  The 
policy, whilst not being 
determined by this individual 
protected characteristic has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

51



 

 

 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Neutral This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street trading.  The 
policy, whilst not being 
determined by this individual 
protected characteristic has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

Neutral This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street trading.  The 
policy, whilst not being 
determined by this individual 
protected characteristic has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Carers Positive  The policy sets out 
requirements for the street 
trading stalls, advertising and 
the area surrounding a stall to 
protect the public and people 
with disabilities that could 
assist those with caring 
responsibilities. 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation) 
 

 None identified 

52



 

 

 

General 
comments 

The updated policy seeks to provide clarity and guidance in 
relating to street trading for applicants, the public and the 
Licensing Team.  

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 

This analysis has been reviewed following a public consultation exercise 
(11 March to 22 April 2022).  No comments relating to impacts on any of 
the protected characteristics were received.  

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

53



 

 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Heather Green  
(Name and title)   Licensing Team Leader  
  

Date completed:  21/10/21  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title)   Senior Community Development Officer 
 

Date signed off:     29/10/21  
 

54



 

 

 

Cabinet  
21 June 2022  

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten 

  Cabinet Member for Corporate 
Governance and Licensing  

           

Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy  

This report proposes the introduction of a new Street Collection and House to House Collection 
Policy following a 6-week public consultation and presents the final draft policy for consideration.  

 

Report Author 

Heather Green, Licensing Team Leader 

 
 01476 406525 

  h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Healthy & Strong 
Communities 

Key All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Anne-Marie Coulthard (Assistant Director Operations 
and Public Protection) 

1 June 2022 

Approved by: Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive   1 June 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance and Licensing) 

6 June 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the results of the public consultation.  

2. Approves the South Kesteven District Council Street Collection and House to House 
Collection Policy with effect from 1 August 2022.  

3. Delegates to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Corporate Governance and Licensing, to make minor amendments to the Policy, 
such as legislative updates, which may become necessary from time to time to 
ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or intent. 

55

Agenda Item 5

mailto:h.green@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Street Collections are the collecting of cash or articles from a stationary position in the street 

for charitable purposes. This is governed by the Police, Factories etc (Miscellaneous 

Provisions) Act 1916.  This Act allows the Council to control the places where collections 

may be permitted and the conditions under which permits can be issued. To date, the 

Council has issued permits in accordance with the Regulations but has not had a policy 

providing a framework to support this.  

1.2 The House to House Collections Act 1939 requires promotors to obtain a permit from the 

Council to collect cash or goods for charity by going door to door before a collection can be 

carried out.  The Council must grant a permit on application unless one of the grounds set 

out in the Act for refusing the permit applies.  

1.3 Currently, Street Collection Permits and House to House Permits are issued in line with 

legislation, however, adopting a policy will provide a framework for Officers and Members 

to enable consistent decision making and transparency.  

1.4 The proposed draft Policy (Appendix 1) was considered by the Licensing Committee at their 

meeting of 12 November 2021 and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their 

meeting of 30 November 2021, where it was agreed that the draft was suitable for public 

consultation.  

1.5 Although not a legal requirement, a 6-week public consultation was undertaken, closing on 

20 April 2022.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The public consultation focused on both elements of the proposed Policy, Street Collections 

and House to House Collections. Direct contact was made with Street and House to House 

collectors/promoters and other relevant stakeholders such as parish council’s, Lincolnshire 

Police etc as detailed in the consultation report. A press release, social media and the 

Council’s website were used to promote more generally.  

2.2 Four responses were received, all were from residents of South Kesteven. 

2.3 A consultation report has been produced. The results show support for the proposed Policy, 

however, the number of responses was low. The consultation comments have been 

analysed and responses provided to comments (Appendix 2).  

2.4 No changes to the draft policy are proposed as a result of the consultation.    

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 The draft Policy was issued for consultation and the feedback has been reviewed in detail.  

Given the overall support, there are two options:  

1) To continue as currently, applying the legislation when issuing the necessary permits, 

but not introduce a Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy.    

2) To approve the draft Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy as issued 

for Consultation, with the policy taking effect from 1 August 2022.  

 

 

 

56



 

 
 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To adopt the proposed new Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy, taking 

effect from 1 August 2022.  

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The development of the new Policy has been overseen by the Environment Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee with the involvement of the Licensing Committee and public 

consultation has indicated support of the new Policy’s introduction.  Adopting a policy will 

provide a framework for Officers and Members to enable consistent decision making and 

transparency. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 If approved, the application process will be amended to ensure compliance with the Policy. 

The Policy will be published on the Council’s website.  

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with the recommendations in this 

report.  The costs associated with delivering the Licensing service are recovered through 

licensing fees which are reviewed annually by the Council. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of 

Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 Whilst each individual licensing application or enforcement decision will be judged on its 

own merits, a Policy ensures a transparent and consistent approach to licensing that will 

reduce the opportunity for challenge through the Courts.  Any departure from the Policy 

should be based on material evidence and documents giving clear and compelling reasons.  

8.2 There is no legal requirement to undertake a public consultation, however, it is good practice 

for local authorities to consult about any significant proposed changes in licensing rules.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 An equality impact assessment was undertaken 29 October 2021, this has been reviewed 

following the public consultation and no additional impacts have been identified (Appendix 

3). 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 No significant risks have been identified.  

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 It is important that those seeking to undertake a street or house to house collection operate 

safely and do not present an undue risk to the public.  The proposed new policy seeks to 

provide a framework to enable consistent decision making and transparency for the 

applicants and the public. 

 

57



 

 
 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The proposed policy does not impact on the declared climate emergency.  

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None identified  

14 Background Papers 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee report - 30 November 2021     

Consultation Results report: 

Consultation Results Document - Street Trading and Street and House to House 

Collections Licensing P.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix 1 – Proposed new Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy 

Appendix 2 – Responses following consultation 

Appendix 3 – Stage 1 Equality Impact Assessment 

 

 

 

 

58

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s31774/Street%20Collection%20and%20House%20to%20House%20Collection%20Policy.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34797/Consultation%20Results%20Document%20-%20Street%20Trading%20and%20Street%20and%20House%20to%20House%20Collections%20Licensing%20P.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34797/Consultation%20Results%20Document%20-%20Street%20Trading%20and%20Street%20and%20House%20to%20House%20Collections%20Licensing%20P.pdf
file://///nassau/health/MSOffice/Licensing/Street%20Trading/Policy%20review%20&%20consultation%20docs/4.%20Street%20trading%20policy%20review%202021/Consultation%0d
file://///nassau/health/MSOffice/Licensing/Street%20Trading/Policy%20review%20&%20consultation%20docs/4.%20Street%20trading%20policy%20review%202021/Consultation%0d


 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Police, Factories etc (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1916  

& 
 House to House Collections Act 1939 and 

House to House Collections Regulations 1947 
 
 
 
 

Street Collections & House to 
House Collection Policy 

 
2022  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version Stage Date 

V1 (draft)  Licensing Committee 12 November 2021 

V1 (draft) Environment OSC 30 November 2021 

V1 (draft) Public Consultation 11 March – 22 April 2022 

V1 Final draft Cabinet  21 June 2022 

59

Appendix 1



 

1 
 
 

 
 

Contents 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................... 2 

1. Introduction .................................................................................................... 4 

2.  Information Sharing and Data Protection ....................................................... 5 

3. Whistleblowing ............................................................................................... 6 

4. Integrating other Guidance, Policies and Strategies ...................................... 6 

5. Who can apply ? ............................................................................................ 7 

6. Street Collection Application Process ............................................................ 7 

7. House to House Collection Application Process ............................................ 8 

8. Refusal or revocation of a Street Collection or House to House Collection  
Permit ............................................................................................................ 9 

9. Street Collection Consultation ....................................................................... 9 

10.  Street Collection Hours of Trading ............................................................... 10 

11. Street Collection Regulations ...................................................................... 10 

12. Collection Returns ....................................................................................... 10 

13. Enforcement Policy and Practice ................................................................. 10 

14. Advice and Guidance .................................................................................. 10 

15. Advice and Guidance .................................................................................. 11 

Appendix 1 - Definitions ....................................................................................... 12 

Appendix 2 - Assessment Criteria for applications ............................................... 13 

Appendix 3 – Street Collection Regulations ......................................................... 15 

Appendix 4 – Street Collections within Stamford Pedestrian Precinct ................. 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



 

2 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Street Collections are controlled in accordance with the provisions contained in 
Section 5 of the Police, Factories etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916, as 
amended by Section 251 and Schedule 29 to the Local Government Act 1972. South 
Kesteven District Council adopted this section, and it came into force on 18 January 
1981.   
 
House to House Collections are controlled in accordance with the House to House 
Collections Act 1939 and the House to House Collections Regulations 1947.  
 
Anyone who wishes to undertake a Street Collection of money or selling articles for 
the benefit of charitable or other purposes in any street or public place, or where a 
charity promotes a collection in which one or more collectors go from door to door   
within the District of South Kesteven, must hold a Street Collection permit or a House 
to House to House Collection permit.    
 
This policy will be reviewed every five years.  In the interim, minor amendments to the 
policy, such as legislative updates, which may become necessary from time to time to 
ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or intent may be made in 
accordance with delegated authority.  
 
This policy is important in ensuring street collections and house to house collections 
operate safely and supports a number of the priorities in the council’s Corporate Plan: 
 

o Growth of the Economy 
o Housing that meets the needs of all residents 
o Healthy & Strong Communities 
o Clean & Sustainable Environment 
o A High Performing Council  

 
By promoting:  
 

• Public safety - to protect public health, the health and safety and welfare of 
members of the public. 

• Road safety - to prevent street collections impacting on the safety of public 
roads and reducing risks to pedestrians and vehicles. 

• The prevention of crime and disorder - to prevent street collections being a 
source of crime or anti-social behaviour and ensure collectors comply with the 
law and act fairly in their dealings with the public and promote a positive image 
of the District.  

• The prevention of public nuisance - to prevent nuisance, inconvenience, or 
disturbance to members of the public.  

 
This policy covers the licensable activities of Street Collections and House to House 
Collections as specified in the Acts as:  
 
Street Collections:  

• a collection of money or a sale of articles for the benefit of charitable purposes  
 

61



 

3 
 
 

House to House Collections:  

• requests for donations of money including the sale of articles and requests for 
articles  

 
Decisions can be taken by either the Licensing Committee or Officers using delegated 
powers. 
 
Where relevant, the Licensing Authority consults with other authorities, local people 
and Members of the Council who can have their say and their opinion heard through 
public consultation on this policy and by making representations.  
 
Notwithstanding the existence of this policy, each application or enforcement measure 
will be considered on its own merits. Where it is necessary for the Authority to depart 
substantially from its policy - clear and compelling reasons shall be given for doing so. 
 
 
 
 
  

62



 

4 
 
 

1. Introduction 

 
1.1 South Kesteven District Council is one of seven districts in Lincolnshire with a 

population of around 142,000.  Two thirds of people live in the four main towns 
of Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and the Deepings with the remaining third living 
in one of over 80 villages and hamlets.  With an area of 365 square miles, it is 
one of the largest districts in the county. 

 
1.2  South Kesteven District Council, (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Licensing 

Authority’), is responsible for the licensing of street collection activities under 
Section 5 Police, Factories etc (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916, as 
amended by Section 251 and Schedule 29 to the Local Government Act 1972 
(the Regulations) and House to House Collections in accordance with the 
House to House Collections Act 1939 and the House to House Collections 
Regulations 1947. 

 
1.3 The importance of charity work in society is recognised by this Licensing 

Authority and is generally supported by residents of the district.  This Policy 
aims to provide clarity to applicants and the public regarding the regulations 
governing Street Collections and House to House Collections, including how 
applications should be submitted and will be determined. 

 
1.4 Street Trading is regulated under separate legislation and is subject to a 

separate policy issued by the Licensing Authority.  
 
1.5 The purpose of the Street Collection Permit and House to House Collection 

Permit regime is to prevent the obstruction of the streets within the district within 
the terms of the Regulations and to ensure the safety of everyone using them. 

 
1.6  An excessive number of collections in a short period of time or collections 

carried out aggressively can cause a nuisance to the public and householders, 
reducing their desire to contribute.  Also, collections being carried out illegally 
or by irresponsible promotors not intending to comply strictly with regulations 
imposed can undermine public confidence in charities.  

 
1.7  Previous reviews of the legislation covering charitable collections has identified 

that it has not kept up with modern ways charities wish to collect.  The Charities 
Act 1993 and the Charities Act 2006 both proposed changes to existing law in 
relation to how collections are carried out, but these changes have not yet come 
into force.  
 

1.8 Charitable collections fall into two categories:  
 
 Street Collections in a public place – includes collections for cash or the sale 
 of articles in the street where the collector is stationary. 
 
 House to House Collections – includes houses, pubs, shops and offices for 
 money, property or goods.  
 
1.9  Each application will be reviewed on its merits, and will include the 

consideration of, but is not limited to: 

63



 

5 
 
 

 

• the location of the collection; 

• the date of the proposed collection; and 

• whether there are any other collectors within the location.  
 
1.10 In undertaking its licensing function, the Licensing Authority is also bound by 

other legislation including, but not exclusively: 
 

• Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 – which imposes a duty on 
every Local Authority to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its decision-making process.  The duty now extends to anti-social 
behaviour, substance misuse and behaviour adversely affecting the 
environment. 

 

• The European Convention on Human Rights, which is given effect by the 
Human Rights Act 1998, which places a duty on public Authorities to protect 
the rights of individuals in a variety of circumstances. 
 

• The Provision of Services Regulations 2009 to ensure requirements are: 
i. Non- discriminatory. 
ii. Justified by an overriding reason relating to the public interest. 
iii. Proportionate to that public interest objective. 
iv. Clear and unambiguous.  
v. Objective. 
vi. Made public in advance, and 
vii. Transparent and accessible. 

 

• Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 
 

• Police and Justice Act 2006 
 

• Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 
 

• The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 
 

• Disability and discrimination legislation.  South Kesteven District Council is 
committed to the implementation and application of this Policy in such a 
manner as to ensure that no applicant or other person is treated less 
favourably on grounds of sex, marital status, race, nationality, ethnicity, 
national origin, colour, disability or age; nor is disadvantaged by the 
application of a rule, condition or requirement which has a discriminatory 
effect, which cannot be justified either in street trade licence terms or as a 
requirement of law.   

 
2.  Information Sharing and Data Protection  
 
2.1 The Licensing Authority works in partnership with other enforcement agencies 

such as the Police, HM Revenue and Customs, Home Office, Department for 
Work and Pensions etc. and will share information with other Council 
departments or regulatory bodies where appropriate.  

64



 

6 
 
 

  
2.2 The Licensing Authority is legally required to provide information if requested, 

pursuant to a criminal offence, or to detect fraud, or immigration offences. 
 

2.3 The Licensing Authority will work with neighbouring authorities and report to 
them any relevant matters that relate to their licence holders. 

 

2.4  Details of Consents may be published on Licensing Authority’s website.  This 
may include name of the business operator, location etc to enable the public to 
be aware of consented collectors.  

 
2.5 The Licensing Authority complies fully with its obligations under the General 

Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), Data Protection Act 2018 and other 
relevant legislation pertaining to the safe handling, use, storage, retention and 
disposal of information and has a written policy on these matters, which is 
available to those who wish to see it on request. 

 

2.6  The Licensing Authority complies in full with the Data Barring Service (DBS) 
Code of Practice for Disclosure and Barring Service Registered Persons.   

 
2.7 In some circumstances it may be appropriate under the Safeguarding 

Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 for the Licensing Authority to make a “barring” 
referral to the DBS. A decision to refuse or revoke a licence as the individual is 
thought to present a risk of harm to a child or vulnerable adult, may be referred 
to the DBS. The power for the licensing authority to make a referral in this 
context arises from the undertaking of a safeguarding role.  

 
3. Whistleblowing  
 
3.1 The Licensing Authority takes wrongdoing very seriously.  Hotlines have been 

established  to allow staff, councillors and the public to raise concerns.  
Though reports can  be raised anonymously, individuals are encouraged to 
leave as much  information as possible to assist with the investigation.  
The Licensing Authority’s  Whistleblowing policy is available at 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk.  

 
4. Integrating other Guidance, Policies and Strategies 
 
4.1 The Licensing Authority may implement other polices, strategies and initiatives 

that may impact on the street collection remit of this policy statement.  Subject 
to the general principles of this policy statement, the Licensing Committee may 
have to have regard to them when making licensing decisions.    

 
4.2 By consulting widely prior to this Policy being published and working with our 

partners at all levels, it is hoped this will generate an alignment between this 
policy and any that may be developed by partner agencies. 

 
4.3 In reaching a decision, of whether to grant Street Collection Permit, the 

Licensing Authority will take account of any non-compliance with other statutory 
requirements brought to its attention.  Non-compliance with statutory 
requirements may demonstrate that the street collection activity proposed, or 

65

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


 

7 
 
 

that the management of such is not appropriate to protect the public from harm 
or nuisance. 

 
5. Who can apply ? 
 
5.1  To apply for a Street Collection Permit or House to House Collection Permit, 

the promotor, collector or person otherwise connected to the collection must 
be:  

• 16 years of age or over  

• Collecting for the benefit of a charitable purpose  

 
6. Street Collection Application Process  
 
6.1 The functions of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by 

one or more officers acting under delegated authority.  The details of which are 
outlined in the Council’s Constitution.  

 
6.2 An application for a Street Collection Permit should be made using the Council’s 

online application form available at www.southkesteven.gov.uk.  Alternatively, 
an application form can be downloaded from the website and submitted by post.  

 
6.3  The Licensing Authority operates a diary system to log collections being 

undertaken in all areas of the district of South Kesteven.  All applicants will be 
dealt with on a first come first serve basis.  

 
6.4  If a street collection is proposed within Stamford Pedestrian Precinct between 

Sunday – Thursday, permission must also be obtained from Lincolnshire 
County Council (EventManagement@lincolnshire.gov.uk)  

 
6.5 One street collection area (Pitch 4) is available within the Stamford Pedestrian 

Precinct to enable a street collection. The location is shown in Appendix 4. 
 
6.6 If cash is to be collected, then a Street Collection Permit will be required and 

should be applied for using the online application process at 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk. The Licensing Team at South Kesteven District 
Council will issue the necessary Street Collection Permit. No permit is required 
for the collection of direct debit details only.  

 
6.7 The location of street collectors on Friday and Saturday within the Stamford 

Pedestrian Precinct are overseen by the Council’s Markets Team who can be 
contacted at markets@southkesteven.gov.uk. If there is no location available 
in the market area, no charity stall or street collection will be permitted  
elsewhere within the Pedestrian Precinct.  

 
6.8  Applications should be made no later than one month before the date on which 

the collection will be made.  This requirement may be waived in exceptional 
circumstance at the discretion of the Licensing Authority.  

 
6.9 Each Street Collection application will be considered by the Licensing Authority 

on its merits, and will result in either 

66

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
mailto:EventManagement@lincolnshire.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
mailto:markets@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

8 
 
 

• The issue a permit specifying the requested date and location or  

• The Refusal to issue a permit  
 
6.10 There are no restrictions to the grounds for refusing an application for a Street 

Collection Permit and there is no right of appeal against a decision of the 
Licensing Authority to refuse or revoke a permit for a street collection.   

 
6.11   The Licensing Authority will use the following guidelines when considering the  

an application for a Street Collection Permit:  
 

(a) Whether another person or organisation has already been granted a permit 
to collect on the same day and location.  

(b) If the Licensing Authority has reason to believe that the collection is not for 
bona fide charitable purposes. 

(c) The Licensing Authority has reason to suspect that the promotor or a 
collector associated with the collection is unsuitable to be permitted by the 
Licensing Authority to undertake the collection.  

(d) The promotor or collectors has previously failed to comply with the relevant 
regulations.  

(e) There is another substantive reason relevant to the objectives of this policy 
to justify the decision to refuse the application.  

 
  
7. House to House Collection Application Process  
 
7.1 The functions of the Licensing Authority under the Act may be carried out by 

one or more officers acting under delegated authority.  The details of which are 
outlined in the Council’s Constitution.  

 
7.2 An application for a House to House Collection Permit should be made using 

the Council’s online application form available at www.southkesteven.gov.uk.  
Alternatively, an application form can be downloaded from the website and 
submitted by post.  

 
7.3 Applications must be received at least one calendar month before the proposed 

collection is due to begin.  
 
7.4 A collection permit in excess of 2 weeks within any one 6 month period will not 

be granted, to enable the availability of collection days to be fairly distributed.  
 
7.5 Whilst there is no restriction on who can apply for a House to House permit 
 under the Act, to enable the Licensing Authority to ensure only persons 
 intending to promote a charitable collection are issued a permit, the following 
 information is required to be submitted with an application:  
 

• Literature about the organisation.  

• A letter from the charitable organisation authorising the applicant to 
undertake the collection on their behalf if the applicant is not the charity. 

• A copy of any agreement or contract details with any registered charity 
or individual benefiting from the collection.  

67

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


 

9 
 
 

• A list of the charity trustees. 

• The Charities previous years accounts.  
 
7.6 Certain collections are not regulated by the Council.  The Minister for the 
 Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport is responsible for the National 
 Exemption Order scheme for house to house collections.  National Exemption 
 Orders (NEO) are granted to organisations which have obtained house to 
 house collection licences in at least 70 – 100 local authority licensing areas 
 during the preceding two years.  
 
7.7 Organisations issued with an exemption certificate must still comply with the 
 Regulations and the Act, but are licensed by the Department for Digital, Culture, 
 Media and Sport.  
 
7.8 The Licensing Authority expects that those holding an NEO notify it of the 
 dates and areas of any planned collections.  This will help avoid more 
 than one collection in the same area at any one time.  
 
7.9  Each House to House Collection application will be considered on its own  
 merits, however the Licensing Authority can refuse to grant a permit (or 
 revoke a permit that has been granted) on certain statutory grounds 
 outlined in the Act). 
 
8. Refusal or revocation of a Street Collection or House to House Collection 
 Permit 
 
8.1 In addition to any grounds set out in the relevant Act or Regulations, a permit 
 may be refused or revoked once it has been granted for the following reasons:   
 

a) A Collection Permit has already been granted to another person to collect 
in the same location or route and on the same day.  

a) The Licensing Authority does not believe that the collection is for a bona fide 
charitable purpose  

b) The promoter or collector associated with the collection has previously failed 
to comply with the relevant Regulations 

c) There is some other substantive reason related to the objectives of this 
policy that justifies the decision to refuse or revoke an issued permit.  

 
9. Street Collection Consultation  
 
9.1  When an application is received the Licensing Authority may consult with:   

• Lincolnshire County Council Highways or Highways Agency (depending on 
the area of trading) 

• South Kesteven District Council – Markets Team 
 
The consultation period is 10 working days (starting the day after receipt of the 
application).  

 
9.2  The consultees may wish to carry out their own risk assessments and impose 

conditions on the site or even veto a particular site, irrespective of whether a 
Street Collection has previously been permitted at the same location.  

68



 

10 
 
 

 
10.  Street Collection Hours of Trading  

 
10.1 The hours for undertaking Street Collections will be determined as appropriate 

on a case-by-case basis dependent upon the location and other relevant 
factors.   

 
10.2  Further operating time conditions may be applied to the Street Collection Permit 

if collecting in Stamford Pedestrian Precinct.    
 
11. Street Collection Regulations  
 
11.1 The Licensing Authority has adopted Regulations that apply to all Street 

Collection Permits as outlined in Appendix 3.  
 
12. Collection Returns  
 
12.1 Under both the Street Collection and House to House Collection regulations, 
 as soon as possible after the date of the collection and no later than one 
 month after the collection, the promotor must forward to the Licensing 
 Authority’s Licensing Team a financial return form showing details of the 
 monies collected.  
 
13. Enforcement Policy and Practice  
 
13.1 It is the statutory duty of the Licensing Authority to ensure that Street Collections 

and House to House Collections are licensed correctly and carry out their 
collections trade in accordance with both the relevant law, byelaws, statutory 
notices, policies and regulations attached to licences. 

 
13.2 Enforcement action will be determined on its own merits. 
 
13.3 Enforcement decisions will be made in accordance with this Policy and the 

Licensing Authority’s Constitution. Officers have delegated powers to make 
decisions and may also refer certain matters to the Licensing Committee if 
appropriate. 

 
13.4 Members, when determining enforcement actions will have regard to Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, this Policy and any other 
relevant legislation, case law, guidance and other relevant South Kesteven 
District Council policies. 

 
13.5 All enforcement will be undertaken in accordance with the Licensing Authority’s 

current enforcement policy. 
 
14. Advice and Guidance 
 
14.1 This Policy will be reviewed every five years.  In the interim, minor amendments 

to the policy, such as legislative updates, which may become necessary from 
time to time to ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or 
intent may be made in accordance with delegated authority.   If no significant 

69



 

11 
 
 

amendments are required during this period, this policy may remain in force 
until a review is deemed necessary. 

 
15. Advice and Guidance 
 
15.1 Further information and advice on the Street Collection permits can be obtained 

by e-mailing licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk or by visiting the Licensing area 
of the Council’s website www.southkesteven.gov.uk. 

 

70

mailto:licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


 

12 
 
 

Appendix 1 - Definitions  
 
Collection – a collection of money or sale of articles for the benefit of charitable  
purposes and the word “collector” shall be construed accordingly. 
 
Collection box - a box or other receptacle for the reception of money from 
contributors. 
 
Contributor - means a person who contributes to a collection and includes a 
purchaser of articles for sale for the benefit of charitable or other purposes. 
 
House to House Collection – collecting for charity, money or other goods from door 
to door in a residential area.  From pub to pub, shop to shop or business to business 
in a commercial setting, with approval from each establishments manager (or 
equivalent) before any collection is undertaken.  
 
Licensing Authority – South Kesteven District Council  
 
National Exemption Order (NEO) - larger, national charities can obtain an order 
issued by the Cabinet Office to exempt them from needing to apply for a House-to-
House collection licence.  However, a street trading permit is still required for street 
collections to be undertaken.  
 
Permit - a permit for a collection. 
 
Promoter - means a person who causes others to act as collectors. 
 
Street - includes any highway and any public bridge, road, lane, footway, square, 
court, alley, or passage, whether a thoroughfare or not. 
 
Street Collection – a collection for charity of money or sale of articles for the benefit 
of charitable or other purposes and the word “collector” shall be construed accordingly. 
 
  

71



 

13 
 
 

 
Appendix 2 - Assessment Criteria for applications  
 
 

1. Public safety 

• The proposed location of the activity should not present a risk to the public 
in terms of highway safety and obstruction. 

• Applications in respect of sites that have previously been the subject of 
refusal due to the unsuitability of the location are unlikely to be accepted. 
 

2. Prevention of crime and disorder 

• The proposed activity should not present a risk of crime and disorder. 
 

3. Prevention of nuisance 

• Activities at the pitch or collection route must not cause a nuisance, 
annoyance or disturbance to neighbouring properties, this includes 
businesses.  

• If complaints that nuisance, annoyance or disturbance is occurring, the 
Licensing Authority is duty bound to investigate and, if complaints are found 
to be justified, may decide to take enforcement action, including withdrawal 
or refusal to issue future permits.  

 
4. Suitability of the applicant 

• When determining whether an applicant is suitable, the Licensing Authority 
will consider the reliability of the applicant in paying fees and charges based 
on previous history. 

• An applicant’s history with such collections will also be taken into 
consideration e.g. whether previous street collection permit conditions and 
or regulations have been used appropriately and whether the Council’s 
requirements have been met, including deadlines. 

• Whether enforcement action is pending or has previously been undertaken 
and proven against the applicant. 

 
5. Suitability of the location  

• Any unit or stand to be used should be of a high-quality design comply with 
the legal requirements for the activity proposed. 

• Location of the collection may determine the trading unit or type of articles 
sold, e.g. in conservation areas the use of traditional style trays, barrows 
and the sale of traditional wares, crafts etc.  

• The use of generators within the location of the collection is prohibited.   

• The route of the house to house collection to be outlined to ensure that it 
does not encroach onto any other permitted collection.  

 
6. Advertising 

• Advertising on the pitch must only relate to the charity and articles offered 
for sale as part of a street collection. 

• Third party advertisements are prohibited. 

• It is not permitted to illuminate any advertisement on the outside of the stall 
kiosk without express consent of the Council. 

• The use of ‘A’ boards or any other display board/structures are prohibited. 

72



 

14 
 
 

• Only advertising of the charity that the collection is in aid of will be placed 
on the bags/boxes used for House to House collections. 
 

7. Selling of goods 

• Anyone applying for a Street Collection Permit must clearly state the nature 
of the articles proposed to be sold and how they relate to the Street 
Collection/charity they are collecting for. The articles must not: 
o Cause a nuisance, disturbance or annoyance to nearby properties/ 

people.   
o Cause or contribute to crime and disorder – including the selling of fake 

or counterfeit goods. 
o Have a negative public health impact e.g. vaping products etc. 

 
8. Site assessment 

• In determining whether a collection in a particular area or route is 
appropriate the Council will have regard to: 
o Any effect on road safety either arising from the collection or pitch selling 

articles. 
o Any loss of amenity caused by noise, traffic, etc. 
o Existing traffic or highway orders e.g. waiting restrictions. 
o Any potential obstruction of pedestrian, vehicular or disabled access. 
o Any nuisance/interruption to pedestrian flow or maintenance of 

appropriate social distancing. 
o Obstruction of entry to or sight lines to the entrance of retail premises or 

obstruction of display windows of retail premises. 
  

73



 

15 
 
 

Appendix 3 – Street Collection Regulations  
 
The following Regulations are attached to all Street Collection Permits: 
 
In pursuance of Section 5 of the Police, Factories etc. (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1916, as amended by Section 251 and Schedule 29 to the Local Government Act 
1972, South Kesteven District Council hereby makes the following regulations with 
respect to the places where and the conditions under which persons may be permitted 
in any street or public place within the District of South Kesteven to collect money or 
sell articles for the benefit of charitable or other purposes:-  
 
1. No collection, other than a collection taken at a meeting in the open air, shall be 

made in any street or public place within the District of South Kesteven unless a 
promoter shall have obtained from South Kesteven District Council a permit.  

 
2. Application for a permit shall be made in writing not later than one month before 

the date on which it is proposed to make the collection; Provided that South 
Kesteven District Council may reduce the period of one month if satisfied that 
there are special reasons for doing so. 
  

3. No collection shall be made except upon the day and between the hours stated 
in the permit.  

 
4. South Kesteven District Council may, in granting a permit, limit the collection to 

such streets or public places or such parts thereof as it thinks fit.  
 

5. (1) No person may assist or take part in any collection without the written 
authority of the promotor.  
 
(2) Any person authorised under paragraph (1) above shall produce such written 
authority forthwith for inspection on being requested to do so by a duly authorised 
officer of South Kesteven District Council or any constable.  

 
6. No collection shall be made in any part of the carriageway of any street which 

has a footway; Provided that South Kesteven District Council may, if it thinks fit, 
allow such a collection to take place on the said carriageway where such 
collection has been authorised to be held in connection with a procession.  

 
7. No collection shall be made in a manner likely to inconvenience or annoy any 

person. 
 

8. No collector shall importune any person to the annoyance of such person to the 
annoyance of such person.  

 
9. While collecting:  

(a) A collector shall remain stationary; and  
(b) A collector or two collectors together shall not be nearer to another collection 
than 25 meters:  
 

74



 

16 
 
 

Provided that South Kesteven District Council may, if it thinks fit, waive the 
requirements of this Regulation in respect of a collection which has been 
authorised to be held in connection with a procession.  

 
10. No promoter, collector or person who is otherwise connected with a collection 

shall permit a person under the age of sixteen years to act as a collector.  
 

11. (1) Every collector shall carry a collecting box.  
(2) All collecting boxes shall be numbered consecutively and shall be securely      
closed and sealed in such a way as to prevent them being opened without the 
seal being broken.  
(3) All money received by a collector for contributors shall immediately be placed 
in a collecting box.  
(4) Every collector shall deliver, unopened, all collecting boxes in his possession 
to a promotor.  
 

12. A collector shall not carry or use any collecting box, receptacle or tray which does 
not bear displayed prominently thereon the name of the charity or fund which is 
to benefit not any collecting box which is not duly numbered.  
 

13. (1) Subject to paragraph (2) below a collecting box shall be opened in the          
presence of a promoter and another responsible person.  
(2) Where a collecting box is delivered, unopened, to a  bank,   it may be opened  
by an official of the bank.  
(3) As soon as a collecting box has been opened, the person opening it shall 
count the contents and shall enter the amount with the number of the collecting 
box on a list which shall be certified by that person.  
 

14. (1) No payment shall be made to any collector. 
(2) No payment shall be made out of the proceeds of a collection, either directly  
or indirectly, to any other person connected with the promotion or conduct of such 
collection for, or in respect of, services connected therewith, except such 
payments as may have been approved by South Kesteven District Council.  
 

15. (1) Within one month after the date of any collection to the person to whom a 
permit has been granted shall forward to South Kesteven District Council: 
(a) A statement in the form set out in the Schedule to these Regulations, or in a 
form to the like effect, showing the amount received and the expenses and 
payments incurred in connection with such a collection, and certified by that 
person and either a qualified accountant or an independent responsible person 
acceptable to South Kesteven District Council;  
(b) A list of collectors;  
(c) A list of the amounts contained in each collecting box; and shall, if required 
by South Kesteven District Council satisfy it as to the proper application of the 
proceeds of the collection.  
 
(2) The said person shall also, within the same period, at the expense of that 
person, and after the certificate under paragraph (1)(a) above has been given, 
publish in such newspaper or newspapers as South Kesteven District Council 
may direct a statement showing the name of the person to whom the permit has 
been granted, the area to which the permit relates, the name of the charity or 

75



 

17 
 
 

fund to benefit, the date of the collection, the amount collected, and the amount 
of expenses and payments incurred in connection with such collection.  
 
(3) South Kesteven District Council may, if satisfied there are special reasons for 
so doing extend the period of one month referred to in paragraph (1) above 
 
(4) For the purpose of the Regulation “a qualified accountant” means a member 
of one or more of the following bodies:  
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales;  
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Scotland;  
the Association of Certified Accountants; 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland.  
 

16. The regulations shall not apply;  
(a) in respect of a collection taken at a meeting in the open air; or  
(b) to the selling of articles in any street or public place when the articles are sold 
in the ordinary course of trade  

   
These regulations shall come into operation upon the expiration of the period of one 
month beginning with the date on which they are confirmed by the Secretary of State.  
They shall have effect in substitution for those contained in the Schedule of the 
Charitable Collections (Transitional Provisions) Order 1974 and adopted by South 
Kesteven District Council on 27 February 1974 which, as having effect by virtue of that 
adoption, are herby revoked.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 
 
Failure to comply with regulations and conditions may result in enforcement action, 
revocation of the permit, and refusal to grant further permits upon application. 
 
The Council reserves the right to amend this Policy and the Regulations in Appendix 
3 at any time and may attach further reasonable conditions to a consent which appears 
appropriate to meet particular circumstances. 
 
 
Do not assume that these rules apply to other districts – some local authorities 
do not allow any street trading and, in any event, local conditions may vary. 
  

The above Regulations were sealed by South Kesteven District Council 

on 4th November 1980, confirmed by an Under Secretary of State for the 

Home Office on the 18th December 1980 and came into effect on the 18th 

January 1981.  

76



 

18 
 
 

Appendix 4 – Street Collections within Stamford Pedestrian Precinct  
 
Stamford Pedestrian Precinct (Monday to Thursday) – Pitch 4, allocated as the only 
location for Street Collections within the pedestrian precinct.  
 

 
Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database rights 2022.  South Kesteven District Council Licence No. LA 100018662 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document enhancement for the visually impaired available on request – tel. (01476) 
406080 or e-mail  customerservices@southkeseteven.gov.uk 

 

77

mailto:customerservices@southkeseteven.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Responses and proposed amendments following consultation 

The table below sets out comments made, responses and potential amendments to the 

South Kesteven District Council draft Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy 

2022.  

Comment  Response and any update proposed 

Q1. To comment on any aspect of this policy, please use the space below: 

Compliance and promulgation of rules is the  
best and only way of stopping fraud 
 
 
 
 
 
Think there should be a blanket ban on this  
 
 
 
If the weather looks favourable, it would be 
lovely to be able to ring the council to see if 
there is any availability. Forecasts a month 
earlier are totally unreliable. Trying to do a 
tombola in a howling gale is impossible ! 
 

This policy aims to provide clarity to 
applicants and the public regarding the 
regulations governing Street Collections 
and House to House Collections, including 
how applications should be submitted and 

will be determined. 
 
Without legislative change, this type of 
collecting is permitted in law and licensing 
authorities must administrate it accordingly.  
 
The Street Collection Regulations require 
an application in writing to be made 1 
month prior to the Collection, this policy 
reflects these Regulations as sealed by the 
Under Secretary of State for the Home 
Office.  
 
No changes to the draft policy proposed  

Q3. Do you support this proposal ?  Please use the space below to tell us why you have 
answered this way:    

With regard to street collections i.e., plastic 
bags …… Further investigation or 
compliance that the operator is actually 
contributing to a charity should be 
considered, simply advertising that they are 
collecting for a charity is misleading.” 
 
It is unfair to limit street collections in 
Stamford to one particular area ie opposite 
Superdrug. Buskers seem to be permitted 
anywhere on the high street, and any cash 
generated if solely for them and not a 
charity. They seem to be able to do exactly 
as they like, whereas charities have 
numerous restrictions.” 
 
 
 

The policy outlines checks that will be made 
upon application for a permit per para 7.5.   
SKDC does not regulate all collections due 
to the National Exemption Orders, issued 
by the Department for Culture, Media & 
Sport.  
 
Busking is outside the scope of the policy 
as it is not considered street collecting as it 
is not being done for charitable purposes 
nor is it street trading unless items are 
being sold.  
 
The Stamford Pedesrian Precinct is under 
the control of Lincolnshire County Council.  
 
No changes to the draft policy proposed 

 

79

Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Equality Impact 
(Initial Analysis) 

 
 

Street Collections and House to 
House Collection Policy 

Licensing  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Area: 
Licensing 
 
 

Lead officer: 
Heather Green  

Date of Meeting  
 
29/10/21 Assessors: 

Anne-Marie Coulthard  

Neutral Assessor: 
Carol Drury 

  

81

Appendix 3



 

 

 

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy 
 
 

South Kesteven District Council Street Collections and House to House 
Collection Policy.  

 

This is a new policy that would be adopted following progress through 
Committee stages, consultation and then approved by Cabinet. The policy 
sets out the requirements and standards that must be met by applicants 
seeking a Street Collection or House to House Collection permit and will 
guide the work of the Authority in the way in which it carries out its function.  

 

 
 

Is this a new or existing policy?  New  
 
2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc. 

 

 
 
Equality Group 

Does this 
policy/service/function/strat
egy have a positive or 
negative impact on any of 
the equality groups?  
 
Please state which for each 
group 

Please describe why the 
impact is positive or 
negative. 
If you consider this policy 
etc is not relevant to a 
specific characteristic 
please explain why   

Age 
 
 

Positive  The policy sets out to protect 
the general public as a whole 
and those under the age of 
16years, ensuring that they are 
not used to carry out charity 
collections inappropriately.   

Disability 
 

 

Positive This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

82



 

 

 

Race 
 

Positive  This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Gender 
Reassignment 
 
   

Positive This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Religion or 
Belief   

Positive  This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Sex 
 
 
   

Positive This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

83



 

 

 

Sexual 
Orientation 
 

Positive This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
 
 

Positive This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership 

Positive This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

Carers Positive  This policy has general 
protection levels and terms of 
operating for anyone wishing 
to carry out street or house-to-
house collections.  The policy, 
whilst not being determined by 
individual protected 
characteristic (except age) has 
been put place to ensure 
standards are met and 
licences are issued on an 
equitable basis. 

84



 

 

 

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past) 
 
*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation) 
 

 None identified 

General 
comments 

The authority is proposing to put in place this new policy to 
provide clarity and guidance in relation to the two activities for 
applicants, the public and the Licensing Team.  

 
 
3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 

the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings) 

 

This analysis has been reviewed following a public consultation exercise 
(11 March to 22 April 2022).  No comments relating to impacts on any of 
the protected characteristics were received. 

 
If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed? 

 
  

 

 
 
4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 

required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.    

 

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken 

 

   

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off 

85



 

 

 

   

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality.  

 

   

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2  

   

c) Adverse impact but continue  

   

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1 

   

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful 

 

 
b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 

policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts? 

 
  

 

 
 
b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 

changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.   

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis 

 
c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 

justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy. 

 
  

 

 
 

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact. 
 
 

 
 

Signed (Lead Officer):    Heather Green  

86



 

 

 

(Name and title)   Licensing Team Leader  
  

Date completed:  21/10/21  
 
Signed (Neutral Assessor):  Carol Drury 
(Name and title)   Senior Community Development Officer 
 

Date signed off:     29/10/21  
 

87



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Cabinet 
21 June 2022 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

Cabinet Forward Plan for the period 13 June 2022 to 12 
June 2023 

This report highlights matters on the Cabinet’s Forward Plan.  
 

Report Author 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)  

Tel: 01476 406156 

Email: Graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Governance All Wards 
 

Reviewed by: Graham Watts (Assistant Director of Governance and 
Deputy Monitoring Officer) 

13 June 2022 

Approved by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer) 

13 June 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke (The Leader of the Council) 13 June 2022 
 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the contents of this report. 

89

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

1. Cabinet’s Forward Plan 
 

1.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

 (England) Regulations 2012 set out the minimum requirements for publicity in connection 

 with Key Decisions. The Council meets these legislative requirements through the monthly 

 publication of its Forward Plan. 

1.2 Cabinet may also receive reports on which it is asked to make recommendations to Council 

 or review the contents and take necessary action. These items are also listed on the Forward 

 Plan. 

1.3 To help Cabinet understand what issues will be put before it in the longer-term, items for 

 consideration during the preceding year have been included in the Cabinet’s Forward Plan. 

 The Forward Plan also includes details of items scheduled for each of the Council meetings 

 due to be held within the plan period. 

2.0 Equality and Safeguarding implications 

2.1 No implications.  

3.0 Appendices 

3.1 Appendix 1 – Cabinet’s Forward Plan 

 

 

 

90



 

 
CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 Notice of decisions to be made by Cabinet  
13 June 2022 to 12 June 2023 

 
At its meetings, the Cabinet may make Key Decisions and Non-Key Decisions. It may also make recommendations to Council on 
matters relating to the Council’s budget or its policy framework. 
 
A Key Decision is a Cabinet decision that is likely: 
 

1. To result in the District Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard 
to the District Council’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates (for these purposes, South Kesteven 
District Council has agreed £200,000 as the threshold at which a decision will be considered significant); or 
 

2. To be significant in terms of its effects on communities that live or work in an area comprising two or more wards. 
 
A Non-Key Decision is one that is not a Key Decision. 
 
The Forward Plan 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is a rolling, 12-month plan that will be updated on a regular basis. It includes those matters that are 
scheduled to be considered by Cabinet during the plan period. This plan also includes details of those decisions that are due to be 
made by the full Council. 
 

91



 
Notice of future Cabinet decisions and recommendations to Council  
 

Summary Date Action Contact 

Review of the Street Trading Policy - Key Decision 

To consider proposed updates to the Street 
Trading Policy. 
 

21 Jun 
2022 
 

To approve updates to the 
Policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and 
Licensing (Councillor Linda Wootten) 
 
 
Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 
E-mail: alan.robinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy - Key Decision 

To consider the proposed new Street 
Collection and House to House Collection 
Policy. 
 

21 Jun 
2022 
 

To approve the Policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and 
Licensing (Councillor Linda Wootten) 
 
 
Alan Robinson, Deputy Chief Executive 
E-mail: alan.robinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Housing Recharge Policy - Key Decision 

Cabinet to confirm the Councils approach to 
the recovery of recharges within its social 
housing landlord function. 
 

 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To approve policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Craig Spence, Assistant Director of Housing 
E-mail: craig.spence@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Housing Compensation Policy - Key Decision 

The purpose of the report is to seek 
approval for the adoption of a 
compensation policy to be used across 
Housing Technical Services and Housing 
Services. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To approve the Policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton, Director of Housing and 
Property 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

92



Summary Date Action Contact 

Corporate Asset Management Strategy - Key Decision 

To consider a draft strategy defining the 
Council’s approach of the management of 
corporate property assets. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To approve the strategy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton, Director of Housing and 
Property 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Turnpike Close Site Remediation works - Key Decision 

To seek approval to enter into a civils 
contract to remediate the Turnpike Close 
site owned by the Council prior to 
considering a further report regarding the 
construction of a replacement depot later in 
2022. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To approve civils contract 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Debbie Roberts, Organisation Development 
Manager 
E-mail: Debbie.Roberts@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Housing Allocations Policy - Key Decision 

A policy which sets out clear parameters as 
to how the housing options team manage 
the allocation of properties within our own 
stock and how support and advice is 
provided to applicants wishing to join the 
housing register. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To adopt a Housing 
Allocations Policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Jodie Archer, Head of Housing 
E-mail: jodie.archer@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Housing Aids and Adaptations Policy - Key Decision 

To enable the Housing Directorate to adopt 
and implement a robust framework around 
aids and adaptions to support best use of 
the council’s housing stock. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To adopt the policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton, Director of Housing and 
Property  
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 
 

93



Summary Date Action Contact 

Policy for the Provision of Litter Bins - Key Decision 

To consider the proposed draft policy for 
the provision of litter bins across the district. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To agree a draft policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Waste Services and 
Climate Change (Councillor Mark Whittington) 
 
Anne-Marie Coulthard, Assistant Director for 
Operations and Public Protection 
E-mail: a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Housing Services Domestic Abuse Policy - Key Decision 

To adopt a robust policy around domestic 
abuse in relation to our social landlord 
responsibilities, ensuring that risk 
management is in place. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To seek approval to adopt 
the policy. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton, Director of Housing and 
Property 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Mobility Scooter Policy - Key Decision 

To consider a policy for the use and storage 
of Mobility Scooters in the Council’s 
housing stock. 
 

12 Jul 2022 
 

To approve a policy for the 
use and storage of Mobility 
Scooters in the Council's 
housing stock. 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton, Director of Housing and 
Property 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Proposed Development brief for Land at Stamford North -  

To consider the proposed development 
brief for land at Stamford North prior to 
consultation. 
 

13 Sep 
2022 
 

To approve the draft 
Supplementary Planning 
Document in respect of land 
at Stamford North for 
consultation. 
 

Cabinet Member for Planning & Planning Policy 
(Councillor Nick Robins) 
 
Director of Growth & Culture 
E-mail: nicola.mccoy-
brown@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 
 

94



Summary Date Action Contact 

HRA Business Plan and Asset Management Strategy 2021-2026 - Key Decision 

To consider the strategy 
 

18 Oct 
2022 
 

To adopt a Housing Asset 
management Strategy 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing & Property 
(Councillor Robert Reid) 
 
Andrew Cotton, Director of Housing & Property 
E-mail: andrew.cotton@southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

95



96


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Review of the Street Trading Policy
	Appendix 1 -  Changes to the Street Trading Policy
	Appendix 2 - Street Trading responses and proposed amendments following the consultation
	Appendix 3 - Draft Street Trading Policy 2022
	Appendix 4 - Equality Impact - Initial Analysis Street Trading V2

	5 Street Collection and House to House Collection Policy
	Appendix 1 - Street Collection & House to House Collection Policy 2022
	Appendix 2 - Responses and proposed amendments following consultation
	Appendix 3 - Equality Impact - Initial Analysis Street Collections

	6 Cabinet's Forward Plan
	FP published 13.06.22
	Plan



